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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. Then the Board will consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. And I'd like to ask anyone who has a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we won't be interrupted. And also when speaking please speak into the microphone because it is being recorded and there are two microphones, one here and one in the center. The Members of the Board also make site visits so that we are aware of what the property looks like. We'll start with roll call. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

GERALD CANFIELD, FIRE INSPECTOR 

    



(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:04 PM) 



LOREDANA PULLANO


7 LAKEVIEW DRIVE, NBGH







(101-2-4) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear 12' x 17' addition and walk way deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Loredana Pullano.               .

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, February 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday February 18th. The applicant sent out twenty registered letters, seventeen were returned; two were unclaimed. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Ms. Pullano: Good evening. I live on 7 Lakeview Drive and am applying for a variance of the R-2 40 foot setback to the rear of my property. As you will note that on lot 15, my neighbor on the side has a mature set of evergreen trees, lot 17 has a mature set of rose of Sharon's and in the back we have a 6-foot privacy fence along with a soon to be mature set of evergreens as well and it overlooks the parking lot. What I'd like to do is, I have a garage structure, I would like to enclose it for more privacy and additional room. It would be a sunroom, lots of windows, I think it would add value to my property and I don't see how it would deter from the neighborhood at all. I think it would enhance the neighborhood if anything. Questions?

Mr. McKelvey: This is going on top of the old deck?

Ms. Pullano: That's correct. 

Ms. Drake: Will there be heat in the room? 

Ms. Pullano: No. It's a sunroom, three-seasons.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?  Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:06 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009      (Resumption for decision: 9:25 PM)

LOREDANA PULLANO


7 LAKEVIEW DRIVE, NBGH







(101-2-4) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear 12' x 17' addition and walk way deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application of Loredana Pullano at 7 Lakeview Drive, seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a addition and walk way deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I don't see any problem. They are going to build a room on top of that deck that is already there and I think there is a parking lot behind the building.

Mr. Manley: I was just going to say it really doesn't change the character a great degree.

Chairperson Cardone:  Do I have a motion for approval? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:26 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:06 PM) 



ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR

400 AUTO PARK PLACE, NBGH







(97-2-11.2) IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking an interpretation as to whether or not the use proposed is permitted in the IB Zone. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant, Enterprise Rent-A-Car.                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, February 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday February 18th. The applicant sent out forty registered letters, thirty-two were returned; eight were unclaimed. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair, due to my business relationship in the insurance industry with Enterprise Rent-A-Car I'm going to recuse myself from this particular matter.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Vigna: Good evening, my name is Frank Vigna and I'm with Enterprise Rent-A-Car. We're located at 400 Auto Park Place in Newburgh. The reason I'm here this evening is to get your interpretation of the zoning for IB zone in that it's not clearly spelled out, according to the Planning Board, what entails a rental motor vehicle agency and I guess I'll open it up to questions. 

Mr. Donovan: Well before we ask questions why don't you do this? Why don't you explain exactly what is going to go on in the business?

Mr. Vigna: Absolutely.

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you just either take the microphone off or could make it a little higher?  

Mr. Vigna: Does that sound good now?

Ms. Gennarelli: That sounds good. Thank you.

Mr. Vigna: Certainly Mr. Donovan, we run a facility at 400 Auto Park Place that handles our customers. We handle everything from lease customers, picking up/dropping off of vehicles at our location; we also handle rental vehicles coming in and out of our location there. Most of that is drop off of vehicles as far as the rental goes. We also handle any kind of customer issues, complaints, any kind of back-up work that we need to do with customers as far as from an insurance standpoint and from an accounting standpoint overall. In our facility there we also have our Accounting Department and our Insurance Department. And what we're looking to do is we're looking to expand our parking lot by 30,000 sq. ft. to…twice a year we pull the majority of our vehicles and from there we take them to auction. So we pull them into our location, we process them there and then we put them out from that point.  So the whole reason that we came originally to get a site plan approval was to expand our parking lot. 

Mr. McKelvey: Right now you've got an awful lot of cars around there.

Mr. Vigna: Yes, right now this is one of the few times of the year…three weeks ago if you went there we almost had none but right now there's a lot of cars there, correct. Yeah. And what we do from there is we pull them in, process them and then get them out to auctions. 

Ms. Eaton: What kind of time frame is that…when you bring them all in and then get rid of them?

Mr. Vigna: Well the cars themselves only sit on the lot I would say less than a week but at this time of the year especially with the economy way it is we have more of an influx this year than any other year in our history of pulling them in. As you may have heard on the news with the auto industry what's going on with that. 

Mr. McKelvey: On the drawing this is where the addition is?

Mr. Vigna: (approaching the Board) Yes, correct. That's it right there.

Ms. Eaton: Will any mechanical work be done?

Mr. Vigna: No. We don't do any mechanical work. All of our cars are new so we bring them to dealerships and have primarily warranty.

Ms. Drake: What about in-between people renting the car and stuff, is there car service work done, in-between customers?

Mr. Vigna: Yes, exactly, just quick prepping. There is no oil change or anything like that, or washing the cars. It's just quick vacs and stuff like that.  

Mr. McKelvey: Do you do the prepping there or the building out front?

Mr. Vigna: Both, we have a front…we have the bays there so at this time of year it's easier. 

Chairperson Cardone: You also have your Accounting Department and Insurance Department there? 

Mr. Vigna: Correct. I'm also located out of the Operations Department. There's a number of Departments in that building as well. 

Mr. Donovan: And, if I can? I think that's what the Planning Board was…if I understand correctly, that was what the Planning Board was struggling with because a motor vehicle rental agency is permitted as an accessory use, accessory to a dealership; a motor vehicle service station; or a hotel and motel and a rental agency is also permitted so we'd have to determine if the rental agency component was accessory to any of those uses which….I don't know that we can say that…it's a principal for the use as a rental agency but I think the concern was, at least as I understand it, with the mix between the office uses which are also permitted but that the motor vehicle rental agency appears not to be permitted as an accessory to the office use but only accessory to a dealership, a motor vehicle service station or a hotel and motel.

Mr. Vigna: Correct, that's what I understood it as too so they pushed it off to you guys to make a…

Mr. Donovan: Well we were kind of hoping that you might help us out with answer to that.

Mr. Vigna: As far as whether or not we are…you know, you look at it and it's definitely a tough question. Do we handle most of our customers at our location? No. We handle them at some of the other locations throughout. However, do customers come to our location? Absolutely. Within the Zoning Ordinance it doesn't say what percentage, what numbers it is so I guess after one it should be considered a car rental agency and we obviously do more than one customer out of that location there. I don't know if that answers your question or not. If not…

Mr. Donovan: I'm just looking for some enlightenment for the Board because the Board has been asked to render an interpretation as to where you fit in terms of the Code and I think an office use is permitted. It sounds like you're…under number five; you're primarily an office? Or is that not true? Or are you a mix of everything?

Mr. Vigna: We're a mix of everything, correct.   

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: You do rent cars out of this building though?

Mr. Vigna: Correct and lease and then the customers can return there as well. Correct, on top of the other things.  

Mr. McKelvey: I'm just figuring you're not going to do it all out front.

Mr. Vigna: Correct, Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: How many employees are there for the Accounting and Insurance Departments? 

Mr. Vigna: In the entire building, we have a total of, I wish we had some layouts but we at around twenty-five to thirty employees at that location. 

Mr. Donovan: And what do those employees do?

Mr. Vigna: A variety of work that we have people in our Lease Department, we have people in our Accounting Department, we have people in our Insurance Department, like myself, I'm in the Operations Department. We also have people who help the rental folks with their cars, plating cars, moving the used car up to auctions, getting those ready those ready and processed. That’s a variety of the job tasks going there.   

Mr. McKelvey: Do you use the Newburgh Auto Auction?

Mr. Vigna: That's one of the auctions we use, that's our main one, correct. So what we'll do is, we have cars come, process them and then move them on to there. And like you saw, I don't know if you've driven by our location right now and it sounds like you have, right now there's a decent amount of cars there and that's why we were looking for the extra parking just for those times of the year. Three weeks ago if you came there you can run around the lot. But it's really an employee safety issue, I mean, if people are walking around, you know, we want to put that extra pavement down in the area, so…

Mr. Hughes: Got anything else? I can't see there's any combination here where you fall in that category. The closest thing that you have here is the fact that you're an office for business but there is nothing that you can couple with that's required here that falls in the accessory use category that you can put together to make it complete.

Mr. Vigna: Right, I guess that's obviously the overall issue. And we feel that we fall under in what the definition of the motor vehicle rental agency definition of is inside of the book and in that case it does fall in the IB zoning.

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron, could you just pull that microphone a closer? It's not going to pick up. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Sure. 

Mr. Maher: You said you do leasing out of there also?

Mr. Vigna: Yes. And it's a facility out of which automobiles, trucks, trailers are offered for rental or a lease and the bulk of lease and rental come out of that building.

Mr. Hughes: You handle heavy duty commercial as well? Tractor-trailers?

Mr. Vigna: No, no.

Mr. Hughes: Just vans, pick-ups?

Mr. Vigna: Yes, exactly.

Chairperson Cardone: I think what we're trying to determine is what is the primary use and I think that's what Ron was driving at. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I don't see anything here that we can couple together that makes that primary use legitimate.

Mr. Vigna: Well, you know, I think the primary is handling our customers out of that location so in that case we're looking to…you know I guess it's tough to couple it with anything just car rental agency.

Mr. Hughes: Well I'm not trying it to couple it just for the sake of coupling it but to couple it to qualify it. 

Mr. Vigna: Right.

Mr. Hughes: You know if you had the primary then you're subject to review and it could fall under one of the accessory uses it might be a way to blend it together.

Mr. Vigna: Right, right.

Mr. Hughes: I don't know, that's just my opinion. 

Mr. Donovan: Well everyone who works in this facility has as their job duties something connected to motor vehicle rentals?

Mr. Vigna: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: So, a motor vehicle rental agency is defined as a facility in which automobile, trucks and trailers are offered for rental or lease but everyone who works there has a job that's devoted to that rental or lease? 

Mr. Vigna: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: So, if I was standing out there…

Mr. Hughes: He's been honest with us you can be honest with him.

Mr. Donovan: May be the argument I'd want to make…that if they all fall under that umbrella and therefore…

Chairperson Cardone: And their primary use.

Mr. Donovan: …they are not an accessory use but they are a primary use subject to site plan approval under not number eleven, column D, but …

Mr. Hughes: That's why I asked him if he had anything else I wasn't quite convinced.

Chairperson Cardone: And neither was I, Ron.

Mr. Hughes: That's a long stretch. 

Mr. Vigna: This is not my full time job obviously (inaudible) I'm not a lawyer. 

Mr. Hughes: You have 30,000 sq. ft. as your total? 

Mr. Vigna: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Increase?

Mr. Vigna: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: So that's 2/3's of an acre.

Mr. Vigna: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And 128 spaces?

Mr. Vigna: Yes, that's what our engineer had figured on.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so what do you get for a car is 10 x 20, Jerry? 200 square?

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: So 128 x 200 square.

Mr. Maher: 25,600.

Mr. Hughes: 24, 600…25…

Mr. Maher: 25, 600. 

Mr. Hughes: A little tight as well but you're here for an interpretation and we're not here to bring that up. Thank you, counsel.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: Not to throw a fly into the ointment but I'm unclear of what the applicant has actually presented. Has the determination been made through the applicant's presentation that this will be a rental agency? Basically meaning that any of your other rental agencies may move to this location?

Mr. Vigna: Not at this time. No. We're going to continue with…as long as the economy the way it is, we're going to continue with the operations as well to service our customers.

Mr. Canfield: O.K. then is the Board clear that you're making the determination that this applicant is a rental agency?

Mr. Donovan: I don't know that we've decided that. 

Mr. Canfield: O.K. Fine.

Mr. Donovan: I think that's the question that I understand from the Planning Board, that they've referred it to us because they don't know if it fit under accessory use. Will it be accessory to or a principal use or as proposed is this even allowed without a use variance? But that…so here the application is for an interpretation and I think we're struggling with a little bit is that where that's going to fall down.

Chairperson Cardone: But would you finish your thought, Jerry? You started to…

Mr. Canfield: Well there's been a lot of discussion at this and I've also been involved with it at the Planning Board both work sessions and that was part of the question that was raised at the Planning Board hearing. And Brian Cox, the Town Planner and myself raised the question, what is this application? And again it's the same thing qualify it. What is it? And I'm still not clear that we've got the answer of what is it. Is it a rental agency or isn't it? If it's a rental agency it's permitted in an IB zone providing that it complies with 185-28 which briefly reviewing it, yes this does, if that's in fact what it is deemed to be, a rental agency. And the big question as well at the Planning Board level was would the other rental agencies that you have one or all of them be coming to this location? And, I think they asked that question so they could further (inaudible) their decision what is it to qualify, classify the project?

Mr. Vigna: When you say that do you mean consolidate to that location?

Mr. Canfield: Yes. 

Mr. Vigna: O.K. And like I said…

Mr. Canfield: That would further determine if it is or is not a rental agency. 

Mr. Vigna: Our overall goal would be to grow the business and open more locations and not consolidate.

Mr. Donovan: I think the bottom line is this, the Board is going to decide what the Board is going to decide but I don't think we've have enough information.    

Mr. Hughes: I have a question or two if I may? Jerry, maybe you can help us out here or whoever may have had a piece of this in the past? This whole site is an auto park where there any conditions set down that enveloped a rental agency incorporated into the auto park? That's the first question I have. And if so maybe you can get us back some information where they spell that out when they made that an auto park? The second part of it…

Mr. Canfield: Can I answer the first question Ron?

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Canfield: The auto park, the rental agency in conjunction with an auto park is permitted in an IB zone so there would not be any separate site plan resolution conditions, you know, prohibiting or enhancing this. It is permitted.

Mr. Hughes: But would they have to be subservient to the dealership?

Mr. Canfield: It does not say that.

Mr. Hughes: He says yes and you say no. I'm really confused now. 

Mr. Canfield: Your Table does not say that. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. No, I know.

Mr. Canfield: Your Table permits a rental agency in an IB zone. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So now here comes the next part of it. If either one of you gentleman can't bring me a piece of paper that shows me that that's allowed in that IB district then I think the safe thing to do would be to consider it as the use that's requested here because from where I sit it doesn't appear as though it is listed. And if it's not listed we just can't say go ahead and do it without a use condition.

Chairperson Cardone: The rental agency is permitted.

Mr. Canfield: Well it goes back to the question, is it a rental agency?

Mr. Hughes: Well, I…

Mr. Donovan: And I guess that what I'm saying is I don't know that I have enough information to really know what you're doing there now.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a copy of the definition of a rental?

Mr. Vigna: Inside? No…

Mr. Donovan: It's pretty brief.

Mr. Hughes: 128 what? 185-28, I'm sorry.

Mr. Vigna: Well, I mean, if you need more clarification of exactly…

Mr. Donovan: I'm just speaking for myself. The Board is going to render a determination. Jerry is raising some issues that maybe are facts that we don't have that we would…the Board would like to have or would need before they could render their interpretation. 

Mr. Hughes: I mean if you look at A there the minimum lot size in the B district it says will be 20,000 sq. ft. or 30,000 sq. ft. for a lot bounded by two or more streets. We don't even have that there to go by to spell it out under that part of the definition or the requirement I should say not definition. But if you go to the definition I don't see where it links together.

Mr. Canfield: It's not in 185 - 3.

Mr. Hughes: No. I have nothing more. Thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Questions or comments from the public? Would the Board like further information? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I would like some.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you please be specific?

Mr. Hughes: Those two questions I asked, I would like to see something in writing for an answer.   

Chairperson Cardone: I think what we're looking for is a clearer picture of what the primary function of this building will be so that we can determine whether or not it is a car rental agency or not.

Mr. Vigna: Well I guess that's where, that's where I'm struggling to find to…you know according to…to definition as long as we offer rental or lease that deems it a car rental agency. You know, I don't know what else…to offer…

Mr. Donovan: I would disagree with that because since the rental agency can be accessory to another use or it can be a primary use. And I guess what I struggle with right now is I don't know what you're doing…broadly you've identified what you're doing but I don't know…you have 25 or 30 employees. If 15 of them are accountants for Enterprise nationwide and they have nothing to do with leasing vehicles and another 8 of them deal with insurance claims that Enterprise receives nationwide so you only have 7 people that deal with leasing well then may be then the leasing of the cars is not your primary use but it's an accessory use and I'm not sure that you fit in under the categories that have that as a permitted accessory use as the zoning is presently written. So I think, I would think that you would need to tell us of the 25 or 30 people, you know, in terms of square footage who is doing what, what percentage of the square footage is devoted to what use and what…so we get a better picture of what's happening at your facility so we know whether, you know, we can render this interpretation because I feel like we don't have enough information.

Mr. Vigna: Well I guess I would take it back to your previous statement, Mr. Donovan, in that if an employee is helping with the overall process of rental, that's an intricate part of the rental process. So if an accounting person was not there could we have all operations going? No we couldn't. So I guess that's what I'm trying to say here is that 100% of the people in that building are part of the rental process.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have another building like this somewhere else in your chain?

Mr. Vigna: Not in my chain but within the country, yes we do.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. but in a regional deal this is the one that takes care of your accounting and your clients?

Mr. Vigna: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And you rent cars out of there as well?

Mr. Vigna: Correct. We handle new leads and everything. 

Mr. Hughes: That's a little more clear now. 

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: I don't know if it improves your position but it's a little bit more clear.

Mr. Vigna: You guys are trying to help me.

Mr. Hughes: I have to be (inaudible) we're here to balance everything out, and you know you've got to have all the right excuses for us to do so.

Mr. Vigna: Right.       
Chairperson Cardone: Is it the wish of this Board to hold the Public Hearing open?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Until next month.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Mr. McKelvey: And I think it's for the reason Mr. Donovan stated, the…

Mr. Vigna: I'm sorry. I missed that. So you want to the Public Hearing open for one more month?

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah and find out what these 25 people are doing.

Mr. Hughes: And so that you can provide to us the information to convince us.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah. That's what he wanted to know.

Mr. Vigna: O.K. Specifically, you know, I'm not sure of how to answer that, I mean…counsel.

Mr. Donovan: Let me answer that question this way that's not going to help you. I don't mean to be flippant and I don't mean to give you a hard time. 

Mr. Vigna: I understand. 

Mr. Donovan: But we're going to need to know that because the Planning Board has asked us and we need to decide as an initial issue what is your use now? Is your use an office use? Or is your use a rental agency use? And once we decide that it's going to be easier to decide that it's going to be easier to answer their question. If we decide that you’re an office use this is not going to go well for you.

Mr. Vigna: Well I think we're both.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. Well…

Chairperson Cardone: But we have to know what is primary.

Mr. Hughes: A letter, once upon a time, this is what we do and how we do what it is what we do here and it's a regional thing here and soup to nuts to explain the position you take in that building with your rental to convince us that it falls where it belongs. 

Mr. Vigna: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: That's as much of a gentleman as I can be. 

Mr. Vigna: And I appreciate you guys' patience with that…

Mr. Donovan: You should stick around because it doesn't happen that often.

Mr. Hughes: I apologize for behaving.

Ms. Gennarelli: We had a first and a second. Shall I do a roll call?

Chairperson Cardone: Please.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes




                             James Manley: Recused

Ms. Drake: So we'll need to have that in time for us to review it before the next meeting.  

Mr. McKelvey: When is the next meeting?

Ms. Gennarelli: March 26.

Ms. Drake: March 26. 

Chairperson Cardone: March 26. So if there is anyone here that's interested in that application you will not be re-noticed but you'll be informed right now that it will be March 26. Thank you.

Mr. Vigna: Thank you. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 7:30 PM)
ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:30 PM) 



LISA MARIE PARKINSON


83 GARDNERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(74-2-2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for a Home Occupation to conduct a beauty salon business in her residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant, Lisa Marie Parkinson.                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, February 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday February 18th. The applicant sent out twenty-one registered letters, eighteen were returned; one was unclaimed. All the mailings and publications were in order.   

Ms. Parkinson: My name is Lisa Parkinson. I reside at 83 Gardnertown Road and I'm here to ask for a Special Use Permit to operate a hair studio out of my home. 

Ms. Drake: Are you on Town water and sewer?

Ms. Parkinson: Town water, we have septic. 

Ms. Drake: Is the septic system designed to handle additional water usage from the hair salon? 

Ms. Parkinson: Absolutely. We have a 500…

Chairperson Cardone: Please use the microphone.  

Mr. Parkinson: I'm sorry. We have documentation stating so. We have an aerobic system on the lot, which handles 600 gallons per day with a 1000 gallon pre-tank.

Ms. Drake: How big is the house? How many bedrooms?

Ms. Parkinson: 1300 and 87.

Ms. Drake: How many bedrooms?

Ms. Parkinson: Two. But the one bedroom is what I made the hair studio into.

Ms. Drake: So it will be one remaining bedroom?

Ms. Parkinson: Yes, the other bedroom, which my son resides in, is not legally a bedroom because it doesn't have a closet. So it would be a two-bedroom home when we bought it. 

Mr. Hughes: But you'll end up with two bedrooms and the hair studio when this is all done. 

Ms. Parkinson: Well the second bedroom is not really considered a bedroom because it doesn't have a…

Mr. Donovan: Stop saying that, really don't say that…

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, did you hear that? (Inaudible)

Ms. Parkinson: O.K. So, I'll have two bedrooms.

Mr. Hughes: You'll have two bedrooms and the hair salon.

Ms. Parkinson: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So you've got three people living in the house? 

Ms. Parkinson: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Chairperson Cardone: And you would be the only person working there? You have no employees?

Ms. Parkinson: No. And I would be working by appointment only. I have plenty of parking and I would like approval for signage if this is approved.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a request for the signage in this application?

Ms. Parkinson: Yes I do.

Mr. Hughes: Well I didn't read that. O.K. I'll look for it later. Maybe I missed it. I just read through it. Did you guys get that? The sign?

Chairperson Cardone: I don't see it.

Mr. Maher: On the bottom of the application there is a…on the a… 

Mr. Hughes: In section 5 C. So you're open 7 days a week?

Ms. Parkinson: Well I would like to work by appointment only. I do work full time during the day and I would like to operate Monday through Friday from 5 to 9:30 and Saturday and Sunday from 10 to 9:30. 

Ms. Eaton: 10 to what on Saturday and Sunday?

Ms. Parkinson: 9:30.

Ms. Eaton: 10 AM in the morning until 9:30 at night?

Ms. Parkinson: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: Do you have a separate entrance?

Ms. Parkinson: Well the reason I am asking is because I work by appointment only. It's not like I have a lot of clientele at this time and it would only be like one car in my driveway, like I would be having company over.

Mr. Hughes: How many people do you treat or take care of?

Ms. Parkinson: Right now maybe about five or six a month but I would like this approval so that I can advertise.

Mr. Maher: So this is currently is a home occupation already?

Ms. Parkinson: Yes, I'm licensed and I do cut hair.

Mr. Maher: No I mean you have it existing already? It's in place already, is that what the issue is?

Ms. Parkinson: Yes, yes.

Ms. Eaton: Is there a separate entrance?

Ms. Parkinson: No, there is not, my front door and my back door.

Chairperson Cardone: And what brought you to us? 

Ms. Parkinson: I would like to advertise because need to make extra money because my full time job is not cutting it.

Chairperson Cardone: And you feel that sign is necessary for the advertising? Is that what you're saying?

Ms. Parkinson: Right, to make it more official. I have seen in the neighborhood other residential businesses that do have signs like hanging on their mailbox or things like that.

Mr. McKelvey: How big a sign do you want?

Ms. Parkinson: Whatever you approve.

Mr. Hughes: The maximum you need to get…

Ms. Parkinson: Just enough to say Lisa Marie's Hair Studio.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry is there a use permit in place at present?

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: How long have you been doing this before somebody caught up with you?

Ms. Parkinson: No one caught up with me. 

Mr. Hughes: Oh.

Ms. Parkinson: I applied on my own.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Ms. Parkinson: I've been licensed to cut hair for twenty years.

Mr. Hughes: But you've only been doing this out of the house for a short time at this point? 

Ms. Parkinson: Yes, since like last February. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so a year. So then you have a pretty good idea how many people come and see you the most times at this point?

Ms. Parkinson: Right, without advertising and with just word of mouth from clients' recommendations. I really don't have many clients at this point.

Ms. Eaton: So you already had the room setup with a sink and hairdryer.

Ms. Parkinson: And I did apply for a Building Permit for the sink.

Mr. Hughes: This is in an R-2?

Ms. Parkinson: R-3, I believe.

Mr. Hughes: It says on the application R-2, that's why I'm confused. 

Chairperson Cardone: R-3.

Mr. McKelvey: R-3, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So what does it permit in R-3?

Mr. Donovan: While we're looking for that, let me ask this question. Jerry, I don't mean to put you on the spot but this is a home occupation or…? So the definition of a home occupation at the end; however, home occupations shall not be construed to include uses as the following: clinic or hospital, barbershop or beauty parlor. So in the past have we…? I mean I'm just saying I don't know how we can allow this at all. Am I misreading something? 

Mr. Hughes: That's what I recall to, that's why I asked what was allowed in R-3.

Mr. Canfield: No you're not.

Mr. Hughes: You've got that other one over there.

Mr. Canfield: The applicant is here because she filed a Building Permit (application) with the Building Department and spoke with Tilford Stiteler who referred her to this Board for a Special Use Permit. But you're 100% correct that a home occupation has its limitations. I don't know if the application can be amended for a, which I think now would become a use variance.

Mr. Donovan: Unless I'm missing something.

Mr. Hughes: That what I thought too.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: We've already had some of these in the Town. 

Mr. Hughes: But not in that zone.

Mr. McKelvey: Not in that zone?

Mr. Donovan: Well, it doesn't…

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, there was…

Mr. Donovan: This is Town wide.

Mr. McKelvey: …one in my zone and it's been there a few years back and it's still there. Of course, it's changed from R-3 to R-1 now but it was there in R-3 when it started. 

Mr. Canfield: That section of the code that Dave is referring to is not zone restrictive. It's specific only to home occupations and it defines what a home occupation is.

Mr. Hughes: Correct and that blankets every zone.

Mr. Canfield: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, that's my concern is that it's not allowed. The other part of it to is you have an aerobic system and it probably runs 24 hours a day?

Mr. Parkinson: Yes it runs 24 hours a day and it is maintained as via the Code per the Town and the State by American Septic which is Sloboda Brothers.

Mr. Hughes: Sure. But the consideration and the problem there is is because of the high water table in that vernal area behind you, that whole thing is a high water table throughout that whole crest of the hill there and that's why you're stuck with that because nothing else will work in there.

Mr. Parkinson: That's right.

Mr. Hughes: And now you've got a lot of chemicals and hair products and stuff that are ending up back into the neighborhood and some people are involved up in there so that's my concern.

Mr. Parkinson: I'm sorry. Is it possible to check with our person that maintains the aerobic system and see if the chemicals that we're using will be broken down as where it's not affecting the system and I mean the aquifers in that area? Is that possible? 

Mr. Hughes: Well I think that's carrying it a little bit far?

Mr. Donovan: I mean, that actually may be…it's important but it may be beyond the jurisdiction of this Board to be concerned about. But I really know how we get, you know, with respect to this application get past the issue that barbershop or beauty parlor is not a permitted home occupation.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: That's a whole different…that's a home occupation or a use variance occupation which is a whole different quantum of proof which your obviously unaware of and obviously not prepared to present this evening. 

Mr. Hughes: That's why he denied the application. 

Mr. Donovan: Well…is that why Jerry? Or did he just…I mean, I shouldn't ask you to speak for him.

Mr. Canfield: Well I will.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: In all honesty, I believe the applicant was sent to this Board at this time in error. She was sent here for a Special Use Permit. I believe she was also led to believe that a Special Use Permit is what she needed. But you're 100% correct. I think the application should be amended if the applicant wishes to do so and come before this Board for a use variance which is much more difficult to obtain.

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Canfield: I don't know if the applicant is aware of that.

Mr. Donovan: I'm sure she is not. She is not a professional and she's not, yeah… 

Ms. Parkinson: Actually when I received the application a lot of the questions on it didn't seem applicable to me and I called and questions and that's why on some of the copies that you have I did cross out what I was told wasn't applicable to me. 

Mr. Manley: Would we be…the Board be able to provide a refund to the applicant for the expenditure of this submission and then allow the applicant to perhaps talk to a professional and resubmit at a later date if they so choose, so as not to put the applicant on the spot tonight?

Chairperson Cardone: That is possible.

Mr. Hughes: Well aren't we making a double ghost chase there? Counsel? Could you explain the difficulty of degree for a use and because it doesn't allow it to begin with that's almost an impossibility? I don't know how we could. 

Mr. Donovan: But you don't want to prejudge anything but I will tell you that if you review the elements that are required to prove a use variance it is extraordinarily difficult and you would have…I don't know how you could do it. O.K.?

Ms. Parkinson: Well I have a question and not to…I notice around the corner right at this light here there is a woman operating a beauty salon out of her house and she has a sign out front so I'm just…I'm not understanding what the difference is and what it is that I need to do in order to, you know, get approved for this.  

Mr. Donovan: I don't know the answer to that question. All I…when I prepared for this evening's meeting and I see a request for a home occupation I review the definition and I see what I see, so I advise the Board accordingly and I don't know whether that was done under different rules. If it was done, sometimes people do things without approvals so that's why they're doing while they weren't approved to begin with. Sometimes things can happen by error. And if it happened by error somewhere else it doesn't mean that we have to repeat a mistake that was made. We have to undo the prior mistake. And I'm not saying there was or there wasn't…

Ms. Parkinson: Right, right.

Mr. Donovan: …but I mean people are up here on this Board are telling me right now that other beauty salons in Town operating out of people's houses. I'm just reading this and saying it's not allowed. 

Ms. Parkinson: O.K. So what is it that I'm to do in order to be permitted to do this? Is there anything that I can do? 

Mr. Donovan: Other than apply for a use variance, which I've already told you is very difficult to get, you know I don't know what you could do other than and I'm not suggesting that this is going to be successful but petition the Town Board to make a change in the definition.

Ms. Parkinson: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: I know it's not uncommon on a Countywide basis and probably larger than that for people have cut people's hair out of their home. 

Ms. Parkinson: Right.

Mr. Donovan: I went to a lady for years. She used to cut my hair in her basement. I used to bring Ron lollypops as a result of that.

Mr. Hughes: That's if he didn't cry.

Ms. Parkinson: O.K. so because the definition states that this doesn't…it's not covered under this definition that's why I'm being…

Mr. Donovan: Well it says…we have in front of us an application for a home occupation and the definition says, shall not include a barbershop or a beauty parlor.

Mr. McKelvey: And you're saying, Jerry, she should have never been sent here?

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct. 

Mr. Hughes: Not for a Special Permit.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: That was the part of it that was wrong.

Ms. Parkinson: A Special Use Permit.

Mr. Hughes: No.

Mr. Canfield: No, a use variance.

Ms. Parkinson: A use variance.

Mr. Hughes: And I think if…maybe you should consult a professional and have them explain to you how difficult it is and what the grounds are that you have to put forth to prove that. 

Mr. Manley: And if you were sent here in error I think that we at least owe the applicant their full refund.

Chairperson Cardone: That is possible.

Mr. Donovan: If we have the authority. I don't know whether we have the authority or if the Town Board has to authorize that. If we have the authority then that's up to this Board, I don't know. 

Chairperson Cardone: But it's possible to request that.

Mr. Manley: Can we make a motion to request that the Town Board consider?

Mr. Donovan: Has this ever happened? I don't…what is your practice, if you have any?

Chairperson Cardone: We've had, well we have refunded applicant's money in the past, not this particular...

Mr. Hughes: Maybe if they take it up with the Building Inspector directly it would be resolved more…

Mr. Donovan: And the reason I said this is when generally something is paid it's paid into the general fund and any kind of expenditure from the general fund in terms of reimbursement needs to be authorized by the Town Board.

Mr. Hughes: The mailing costs and all of that.

Chairperson Cardone: But there is a process to all that.

Ms. Parkinson: It was over $100.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I'm sure. Thank you for answering those questions. 

Mr. Canfield: If I may, Dave? In the past what's happened is if a given Board writes a letter of authorization permitting the Building Department…or the Accounting Department to issue a voucher and the applicant signs the voucher, it gets submitted to Accounting which in turn is signed by the Town Board. So that's the approval mechanism.

Mr. Donovan: Got you, O.K.

Mr. Canfield: But it all originates with a letter from the jurisdiction.

Mr. Donovan: And that voucher would be approved at their audit meeting so that the Town acts as…that's authorized to get paid.

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. Yes.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I would suggest we would take that route that because we never make mistakes let's not write a letter underlining we've made a mistake and let them work it out. We didn't make a mistake.

Chairperson Cardone: We didn't make a mistake.

Mr. Hughes: They made a mistake over there.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Ms. Parkinson: Would that refund also include the application for the permit for the sink, because I even haven't gotten that inspected yet?

Mr. Hughes: Well it depends on how you make out with those guys, that's really not in our jurisdiction.

Ms. Gennarelli: Well anybody that gets denied by the Board gets a refund on the application for a building permit fee.

Mr. Hughes: Just as a matter of regular… 

Mr. Donovan: On the permit fee not on the fee for us.

Ms. Gennarelli: Not on this Board's fee, right just on the Building Permit application fee.

Chairperson Cardone: And what if the application is withdrawn?

Mr. Donovan: The Chair has asked a good question. We either have to deny you or you have to withdraw your application so at the present time instead of having us issue a denial you may wish to advise us that you withdraw your application at the present time.

Ms. Parkinson: Well if you deny me then wouldn't that get my money back as far as…?

Chairperson Cardone: No. 

Mr. Donovan: I think if you withdraw your application and we indicated, just following the procedures that have been described you'll get your money back. 

Ms. Parkinson: O.K. I'll withdraw my application. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.    
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(43-5-22) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum lot building coverage, the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures, building an accessory structure close to the fronting street than the dwelling, accessory structure no closer than 5 feet from the property line, creating a new non-conformity with the 14 ft. x 14 ft. addition to the prior built 31 ft. x 14 ft. accessory structure, accessory structures must be 10 feet from the main building to keep the prior built 8 ft. x 9 ft. pool shed and a rear yard setback, one side yard setback and combined side yards setbacks to keep the prior built two-tier deck.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant, Matthew and Heidi Benson.               .

Ms. Gennarelli: The first is for the accessory structures and the deck. The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, February 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday February 18th. The applicant sent out seven registered letters, four were returned; two were unclaimed. All the mailings and publications were in order.   

Mr. Benson: Madam Secretary, can I give out this supporting, which will help illustrate what I discuss? Is that O.K.?

(Mr. Benson approached the Board)

Mr. Benson: The first item…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Can you please use the microphone? It comes off of the stand you could take it off.

Mr. Benson: Yes, sorry. Is the first item the pool variance?

Chairperson Cardone: No. 

Mr. Benson: First of all I want to apologize for the length of this application. I hope to shed some light on it if I can. And if I could, if everyone can see this I just want to give you some context of this property. The context will help you figure out where these problems originated. This property began; it was built in 1860's and was called Echo Lawn built by the husband of Minnie Knowlton and it began at the Balmville tree and ran north forty acres…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me Matthew.

Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Ms. Gennarelli: You are going to have to move the microphone over. We need about two inches. That's good. It comes off.

Mr. Donovan: And just so you know it's not so we can hear you, it's everything is recorded.

Mr. Benson: O.K. Very good. Can everyone see this O.K.?  O.K. Anyway Echo Lawn was built in the 1860's and it was the twin estate to Algonac, which was FDR's mother's estate, mother's and father's estate, the Delano estate. So back in the 1860's there were two large estates along the Hudson including Echo Lawn and for about a hundred years both of these estates were intact with their original parcels. In the 1950's the land, all of the land frankly was bought by a developer named Frederick Warmer and Warmer subsequently developed Susan Drive which if you look at your map here, the historic map, the Algonac estate is now in the middle of Susan Drive and various other houses that are there. Echo Lawn was left a large unaltered parcel for almost a hundred years and in 1960 Frederick Warmer was going to also subdivide into forty or fifty small quarter acre lots, the Echo Lawn estate. He submitted the plans; he had Eustance and Horowitz of Circleville draw up the plans for the estate to subdivide it all and it never went through.  Part of the map is filed in Goshen but the other part is not. So but what he did do and I'll just turn this around was when he started planning the subdivision these are the, these are the lots as he drew them on top of the original estate buildings. So you can see he was going to raze the entire property in 1960 the property that a…I own with my wife three properties along River Road including the gatehouse of the estate which we rent out, all of the original farm outbuildings which we restored and we also bought behind us to the south as frankly as a buffer and also to include the gates which for reasons I'll explain in a moment were not on our parcel, these were bought from Kenneth Lytle and so we now own three parcels. However these property lines cut through the original outbuildings including the stable and the barn and are all non-conforming. Had the property been torn down obviously that wouldn't be an issue but he left the property up. So thankfully because for historic reasons its, it’s a, it was a good thing so the property remains. All the original outbuildings remain and the setbacks and numerous issues created by putting a subdivision basically super imposing these property lines on existing buildings has what's created, has created obviously the reason why I'm here today so. Now after Fred Warmer decided not to develop this property my wife, who is a Petelinz of Petelinz Dairy they're fifth generation Newburgh, she grew up in the late 1960's her family lived in this house for forty years the gatehouse and in 1994 Heidi and her mother bought the rest of the buildings, the contiguous buildings from Judy Carr. And I met Heidi around that time and we slowly began just to restore on very little money just (inaudible) the buildings one by one taking off old paint, etc. And in 1999 but we have, excuse me I'll go back we had surveys made before we bought the property obviously by George Zoutis and he surveyed our parcel and he also surveyed the gatehouse parcel for us. And with those surveys which were certified so that we could get loans to buy the land we did put in a pool over here and we also put in a porch to go with the pool and on the original Zoutis survey the setbacks, if look at the survey, if you look at both of those surveys the Zoutis survey he actually shifted both of the lots so that the alignment of the property lines changes all of the setbacks on the original Zoutis survey. So we were going by a survey that basically was in error.

Mr. Maher: Excuse me. Which one is the Zoutis survey?

Mr. Benson: The Zoutis survey is the simple survey that comes before, yes that one.

Mr. Maher: O.K.

Mr. Benson: So this survey if you compare it to the one on following page all the building line up nicely on the Zoutis survey but its tilted on its axis he clearly found one point and just used that to draw the parcel. He did that with the gatehouse as well and on the original survey for gatehouse, which we bought, the gates themselves are not included even though there is a gatehouse. So there were a lot of discrepancies on these surveys but that being said we did use the original certified surveys to put in a pool, we came in front of the Planning Board and got a variance to come within four feet of land that at that point we did not own. Currently we do own this parcel here as well as this lot, as well as this lot. And I currently, my neighbor Douglas Johnson who owns the main villa for the property I am buying a 5000…5100 sq. ft. piece from him here also as a buffer. So at this point, at this point the property looks like this. So once we had a new survey done actually I came to the Secretary of the Zoning Board and gave her the Zoutis survey and she said it wasn't a good enough survey. It's obviously not detailed and a lot of stuffs is left out and I had a new survey made and I said be very detailed and they were and this survey showed that our original Zoutis survey was incorrect and George Zoutis admitted as much so I'm trusting that this is the accurate survey. I know Mr. Lytle used this survey as well and he informed us that our original survey was incorrect. But we did use that original survey and to put in the pool and the…and the porch and had no reason to believe that survey was incorrect or that it cut off this original outbuilding as well. So I think basically most of these issues with a…setbacks and with a…with a property lines and backyard setback or rear yard setback began with Fred Warmers in the 1960's when the whole property was going to be torn down and continued with the bad Zoutis survey which we trusted and our banks trusted and now we find ourselves in this predicament. Now the positive side of it is I was able to buy more land and we do own the rental property that closest to River Road and I am buying this piece here and I would like nothing more than to resolve these very irregular and troublesome lines which frankly have not been addressed for almost fifty years since they were put in by Mr. Warmers. This property was basically non-compliant in the woods for fifty years and once development started I think, you know, attention was drawn to the property and it became clear that we had a lot of setback issues and we had too many buildings for the size of our lot things like that so. I'd be happy to go through each one of these if you'd like or if you have any questions.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a question.

Mr. Benson: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: How many of those structures have you actually constructed without a Building Permit?

Mr. Benson: This…the pool had a Permit. It wasn't closed. Now I have to say as a caveat I was not living here full time when the major things this covered porch and the pool were put in. And I have to plead a bit of ignorance about the Permitting system. The porch was put in by Adirondack Construction. They said they got a Permit, they you know…I…I assume they had a Permit this Adirondack, I found out later he said I thought you had a Permit…so that was…that was a big miscommunication there. This structure here was in terrible shape, a lot of this…a lot of this…a lot of the property was in terrible shape but a…but it was…it was rebuilt a…it was built on an existing foundation using mostly original materials. And I did…I did do the construction without a Permit. Again not aware that if I was rebuilding something that was…had fallen down and not building substantially new and not putting a new foundation that I would need to get a Permit so that was my mistake a…I found out later that I did and I subsequently have gotten Permits (applications) for all of these structures. 

Mr. Manley: Do you have a contract of sale for the property that you've indicated that you're purchasing from the Johnson property?

Mr. Benson: A…we are in contract as we speak. I have a survey from Ray Heinsman in Fishkill. I might have it with me with my other materials but it is a…it is a metes and bounds are drawn up and we are going to…I'm buying this small corner. My other neighbor is buying about almost six acres from Mr. Johnson. So I'm buying a little chunk.

Mr. Manley: In the paperwork that you submitted to the Zoning Board there is no documentation that documents to this Board that that piece of property is currently under contract for sale.

Mr. Benson: It's not mine yet and we're in contract with lawyers as we speak and I have had another survey drawn up and all the metes and bounds are…but it's not closed yet. I don't own it yet. Yeah that is correct. But I will be owning it by March 31st. 

Mr. Hughes: Is what you're saying that you're going to end up with the red line or orange line as your outside footprint for the property?

Mr. Benson: Well this is what I would like to propose as a means of resolving some of these setback issues. If I…this is obviously all of my property this is not in contract yet but this will be my property by the end of the month and plus this 1.2 acres behind me. If I…the red line constitutes basically almost a quarter acre or more actually, 12, 500 sq. ft. that I would add to my property in order to satisfy the variance and setback issues that have been brought up…

Mr. Hughes: Is the reason that you're creating that 15 foot swath down there so Johnson can get home?

Mr. Benson: No, Johnson knows how to get home this way but this…

Mr. Hughes: So he has a deeded right of way through your place to get…?

Mr. Benson: He does…a Mr. Johnson…

Mr. Hughes: And your driveway now is on the next-door neighbor's property?

Mr. Benson: Well we own this property as well so that…

Mr. Hughes: No, I'm talking about up in here where you get back by your swimming pool.

Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: That road is on the neighbor's property.

Mr. Benson: It enters on to his property, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: So you've got it all the way around here you've got something bad going on here.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. And…and a…but we do have a liber and a deed for a right of way for both the main house, our property and the property we rent out to go through the gates and use this road. There's an established right of way for those three houses. So, yeah I cross over my rental house property and I cross over a property to the north that I don't own then I go on my property and then go slightly off a bit and end up at Mr. Johnson's property. 

Mr. Hughes: And Johnson right now is the only way he can get home?

Mr. Benson: Yeah. Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: All right so…

Mr. Benson: But he would have a right of way written into as he does now.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the other property that you cross over do you have a deeded right of way…

Mr. Benson: Over here?

Mr. Hughes: …for that as well?

Mr. Benson: Yes I do. Yeah. I have a deed to use…

Mr. Hughes: Well there's three… 

Mr. Benson: …the private road. 

Mr. Hughes: …three parcels that have a deeded right of way to that drive?

Mr. Benson: Yes there are. There's our property, the rental property and Mr. Johnson's property. 

Mr. Hughes: And the rental property is separate than yours?

Mr. Benson: Yes it is. It's a separate parcel and it's the…actually the gatehouse of the original estate and…

Mr. Hughes: Is that the red house?

Mr. Benson: It is the red house and that's the house that my wife grew up in and we now rent it out. 

Mr. Hughes: Now is the red house partially on this other property or vice versa? 

Mr. Benson: It is not on the...no…it is the original property line goes like this or the property line that we're working with so the red house actually has its own property line.

Mr. Hughes: Is that this orange line you're talking about? 

Mr. Benson: Right. I mean it is non-compliant it does come to close to my other property at 9.8 feet but basically it is in better shape than our property.

Mr. Hughes: And so at this point the shed on your property is actually on the red house's property?

Mr. Benson: Part of the shed is on my other property. Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. Although again on the Zoutis survey it showed that the whole shed was on my property so, you know, the twist of the new survey threw a lot of stuff off, unfortunately. What I hoped to show here I guess is that I am…a…I do want to resolve these issues and I am willing to do lot line changes and have a surveyor come and not only make my property larger so that the issue of actual lot coverage and allowable square footage for accessory structures, etc. can be resolved. Now the issue with the…the accessory structures being closer to the street than the main dwelling, our main dwelling is basically here, this is the carriage house. It is the farthest structure from the road. Of the seven farm structures on this property the house we live in is the farthest from the road and always has been so a lot of that is…is obviously preexisting the fact that a, and you know, also…

Ms. Drake: Can you speak into the microphone?

Mr. Benson: Sorry. There's no real a…there's no front door I mean the front door is here but is at the back door. This is a very square peg property. Every time we get an appraisal there's no comparable, it's the only estate farm left in the Town of Newburgh frankly that's intact with its estate. A, and that's why it was nominated to the National Historic            

Register not only because we're very interested in history and historic preservation but also because they saw it had a unique profile. That the footprint of this estate was still intact unlike Algonac which is now surrounded by other houses this estate is basically intact, the main house and all of its original 1850's outbuildings. And the part of the estate that is not intact, of course, are these…are the property lines, you know, the original property lines were not coming through the existing buildings. 

Mr. Manley: There are some issues with respect to not only the, in my view, not only the issues you have with the variances that are requested but as far as the use with respect to the property. Can you maybe describe maybe a little bit about what your use of the property is? And what your plans for the property are as far as utilization of it?

Mr. Benson: Yeah, I mean, this is our primary residence. I'm a photographer. I had a studio in New York City. I decided to leave New York and move up here because I thought it was a beautiful place to live and I love this property so I thought well maybe I can work here. Now I do…I have an office here, I don't do a lot of photography here, I mainly do business and contact, I work on location. But the property has been featured in a lot of magazines, I mean, it's been used for photo shoots, that's true but I primarily have it as a place to live and we, we, we love, we love to garden. We love a, we love a…having the historic buildings all around us. My wife obviously grew up her and traveled all over the world and moved back here because she loved it so much so a…

Chairperson Cardone: Do you sell the products from the garden?

Mr. Benson: At this point I do not. No. I mean, I well…I'm sorry I do sell some grapes from the greenhouse to Adam's. If you go to Adam's in August there are seedless concord grapes from my greenhouse. For about $150 a year they buy grapes from me. But basically it's…it's not a commercial operation in any way. It's just…

Mr. Hughes: Do you have other home business out of there, though?

Mr. Benson: I have my photography business. That's my main business.

Mr. Hughes: Besides the farming?

Mr. Benson: Well the farming isn't a business but well O.K. I sell to Adam's…a…photography…no I don't. No it's not a business property in that sense. 

Mr. Hughes: Well what about this letter we got about the farm market and all that? 

Mr. Benson: Well that's not happening yet and that's subject to the approval of…obviously its not going to happen until I get some kind of approval. But we do…

Mr. Hughes: Approval from who? 

Mr. Benson: Well approval either from…from the Zoning Board or from your Board or from…but one of our ideas and this is just an idea at this point, this was a farm in the 1860's. This was a farm that supported this old estate and in as much as local farms and local food are very…becoming more and more important…would I like to be able to have a small micro farm here where I produce organic vegetables? Yes, maybe. You know, it's not happening yet but it is…it is a farm and I'd like it, I'd like probably at some point for it to be a little bit more of a farm.

Ms. Eaton: Have you ever leased out any of this for a wedding?

Mr. Benson: I have not…a

Ms. Eaton: A concert?

Mr. Benson: No.

Ms. Eaton: Do you advertise it as that?

Mr. Benson: No…I…I thought it might be…but my neighbor has done that. He had a wedding there last summer.

Ms. Eaton: I'm not talking about a family wedding. I'm talking about renting this out for strangers.

Mr. Benson: Oh yeah, he had a regular wedding there it wasn't his family. Yeah.

Ms. Eaton: But you don't advertise yours as renting it out?

Mr. Benson: At this point, no.

Ms. Eaton: To use as a wedding?

Mr. Benson: No.

Ms. Eaton: …setting? 

Mr. Benson: No, at this point, no. No.

Mr. Hughes: I'm a little bit confused now, I've…we've, I don't know about the rest of the Members but I was out on the property…


Mr. Benson: Yeah. O.K.

Mr. Hughes: …and I went all over the place…

Mr. Benson: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: …and I'm very familiar with all of the adjacent properties as well, as Mr. Lytle can tell you.

Mr. Benson: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Where are you planning on the planting, man? There's not a 20 x 20 anywhere there.

Mr. Benson: Well the back, the lot that we bought from Mr. Lytle which is a developable lot and we did spend a lot of money…

Mr. Hughes: South of Johnson's?

Mr. Benson: South of us, its over here, so if you're coming up River Road it would be before you get to our gates.

Mr. Hughes: Where the horse fence is…?

Mr. Benson: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: …so to speak?

Mr. Benson: Yes. So that is a 1.2-acre parcel.

Mr. Hughes: And where would that be? On the other side of this 15 foot lane?

Mr. Benson: It would be, yeah, it would be right here. This is a…this is a landscape buffer that was approved by the Zoning Board for Mr. Lytle when he sold us this piece. This piece is here 1.2 acres.

Mr. Hughes: And that's where you plan on planting?

Mr. Benson: Yeah. That's where I've got…

Mr. Hughes: And how do you get to that? Do you have a deeded right of way off of River Road for that? 

Mr. Benson: Yeah, I mean I…I go through my…I own the property and the road and I also can go around the back and I can come through my rental property, there all…

Mr. Hughes: So you don't have a regular curb cut for this other property? 

Mr. Benson: A…the…no because the developer who built the house to the south of the lot I bought I said we're not going to be going off River Road to use this property so you can…do I have to worry about cutting a driveway in or making it accessible for us, we're planning not to use it for that reason.

Mr. Maher: But it had to be approved through the Planning Board for a…on the Planning Board level.

Mr. Benson: It was approved for two driveways to go in there. But because we bought the lot and we don't want to put a driveway in there I told the developer behind us, you know, don't…just put in your driveway and we're not going to be putting in a driveway there. That's not our plans. 

Ms. Eaton: Is that where you'll plant fifty fruit trees?

Mr. Benson: I do have…I do have plans to plant fruit trees. Yeah. And I, again, I should give you some context. We're members of the Historical Society and we're very interested in history obviously. We live in this old house and we care deeply about the structures, a, and restoring them and, and saving some history in this area so we are thinking about planting an orchard a variety of apples and pears that Andrew Jackson Downing wrote about in the 1850's in his Fruit Trees of North America. So there'd be a connection with the Crawford House and the historical context of Downing being in Newburgh…a…and I just think it's a nice…it's a nice value added thing for a property that already is from that era from the 1850's and 60's to have a Downing type orchard. Yeah. That would be great. And I think a…I…I frankly have gotten such great response from my neighbors about what we're doing and they see that this is becoming a farm again and they…they, you know, it's building very popular support.

Chairperson Cardone: I do have a letter from a neighbor that is not supportive.

Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: And I'd like to read into the record: (from Michele Benzakein, 424 River Road)

Matt Benson has been building (by hand) an organic farm since before I moved in, September '08. He told me he had Permits from the Agriculture and Zoning Boards to build and burn. The Benson family wants to open a farm market their property this summer. I do not want commercial property next to me with people buying that I do not know. Matt has a website at Stonegate Farm to sell his products. He took the photos and a barn from my property. 

I don't understand that sentence.

He has also acquired more hens. Other people have noticed him building also. I do not want his permits approved. 

I'd like to ask you about the sentence where she said you have Permits from the Zoning Board to build… 

Mr. Benson: She is…yeah; I have a agricultural exemption from the DEC which allows me to burn in the Town of Newburgh because I am agricultural and they…always has been. Sometimes less so now we'd like it to be more so and I've had Burn Permits for the last fifteen years from the DEC. I think that's what she's referring to.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, O.K. 

Mr. Benson: And frankly, I do have to say, you know, my wife's family has been there for forty years, I've been there for fifteen years and we're really doing good by this property. We're taking care of it. We're being good stewards of it. This neighbor moved in less than a year ago and the moment she moved in she has been calling the Police and calling Code Compliance and calling the Fire Department and calling anyone she can for some reason to make life difficult for us and I don't…I'm not a psychiatrist. I don't understand why people would be motivated to do this but that is what she has been doing and I've…I've been very nice to her it doesn't seem to be, you know, it doesn't seem to be a…to be enough. She seems determined to…to a…not get along either with me or my neighbor Douglas Johnson or my tenants. She is causing problems with everyone frankly. 

Mr. Manley: Do you have any hens or any farm animals on the property?

Mr. Benson: There have always been hens. My wife grew up with hens. So there are about six hens, they're about the size of a…they're miniature chickens, there's no roosters. They are less loud than the turkeys or the crows or anything else. They stay basically inside the…one of the farm buildings that's where they live. So yes, there are hens there but they are not a...you know, they're not any kind of nuisance that anyone who has been there would attest to that.

Mr. Manley: Do you have any other animals besides domestic pets?

Mr. Benson: No, we have two cats and a half dozen hens, bantam, bantam hens.

Mr. Hughes: What's going to go in that pen?

Mr. Benson: Well that's not…that's where the orchard is going to be.

Mr. Hughes: That's to keep animals out not to keep them in?

Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. because I saw a pen there.

Mr. Benson: Deer love apple trees.

Mr. Hughes: And I saw the trees in there…

Mr. Benson: Yeah. Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …and I was wondering.

Mr. Benson: No. We want to do a historic orchard and we want to keep the deer from devouring, we have some deer pressure so that's what that is. I already have a fence around all of our organic vegetables that we're growing.

Mr. Hughes: But now I have a question for you. I see a letter here that's saying that you're about to be nominated for the Historic Register in the State.

Mr. Benson: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you know how the rules change once you're listed on that, on what you can and can't do on that property?

Mr. Benson: I think actually the nomination doesn't have a lot of teeth. It's more a….it's more a sort of a honorary thing.

Mr. Hughes: Really?

Mr. Benson: I don't know that it…

Mr. Hughes: I've been the Vice President for Downing Park for the last four years I would suggest you look into that.

Mr. Benson: Oh, O.K. then I misunderstood because they…when I was approached by them and I said O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Well they're glad to get them on the register.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. O.K.

Mr. Hughes: But you won't be glad when you see the book of rules that you have to comply with.

Mr. Benson: O.K. Well, all right. They said…I mean…I took…I planned to work within…I'm always going to do things that I consider to be historically architectural on this property. I'm not going to do anything I would hope that they would thing would be against their nomination but I could be wrong.

Mr. Hughes: You'll be surprised. Jerry, where have we landed? What have you got on all of this? Is anything Permitted? Was anything built with a Permit? 

Mr. Canfield: This has been an ongoing issue for many years. It was through a complaint lodged by a neighbor, I'm not specific with which one and also the Assessor's Office that prompted the Building Department to go out and look into these issues. Mr. Petelinz, or I'm sorry, Benson is correct that we do have a Permit open on the swimming pool but that's it. All the other renovations and decks and sheds and renovations we do not have any Permits on.

Mr. Benson: Can I just interrupt quickly? I did file for Permits for everything else after I found out…

Mr. Hughes: Why don't you let him finish off and then if you have something…

Mr. Benson: (inaudible) there are open Permits on these I did file on them after that.

Mr. Canfield: Open Permits? Or Applications filed? I don't believe you Permits were issued they're just Applications at this point.

Mr. Benson: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: And that's why you’re here. With those Permit Applications is how you got here.

Mr. Benson: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: With the separation between the two plots now and the one house with the change here going to relieve that shed from being on the red houses property does that put us in compliance with all the other buildings that are on that thing for two separate lots or are we still pushing on the verge of two many buildings on one place? 

Mr. Canfield: Well with Mr. Benson's presentation and these graphs, they kind of educated me a little bit as to what goes on and then something occurred to me that with these red lines now drawn, which I'm not sure are legal metes and bounds yet, …

Mr. Hughes: Right. But it could work?

Mr. Canfield: It's all a proposal.

Mr. Hughes: It could work if they did that?  

Mr. Canfield: I can't say that because we did not review this and…

Mr. Hughes: Well this is last minute he just handed this out.

Mr. Canfield: I don't know that it's a good idea to review it because it's not legal metes and bounds, its just lines on paper at this time. I also must say to the Board that all of the sheets that were submitted are the percentages and calculations were done with the existing lots, the green lines here so if there's a proposal before us and I caution you, it changes the complexity of everything. These are just lines on paper. They are not legal metes and bounds and they're not lot line changes and actual filed maps, they don't exist.

Mr. Hughes: So we have to review this under the position its in right now?

Mr. Donovan: Well, let me ask, is there an application before the Planning Board? 

Mr. Benson: I wanted to bring this up with you first as a possibility to amend the setback and variance issues simply because I own two other properties I am able to do a lot line change. You know, when we put the pool in it did not do this obviously with the Zoutis survey it was…and we got a variance to come within 4 feet and we did and it was compliant and with this new survey we find it's non-compliant. So in looking at the land I own and these are certified survey lines granted their not…the lot lines haven't been changed yet but this is a certified line of the land that I own, my proposal is to take some land off the 1.2 acres on the back that I own and to incorporate that land into this existing parcel. Now I should also say, you know, just…just because…

Mr. Donovan: Let me just interrupt, it doesn't really make…relative to the application before us…

Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: …there's no, as I understand it, there's no mechanism for a lot line change with the Planning Board, you need a subdivision. So your neighbor and yourself in order to make these red lines the property bounds you'll need to appear before the Planning Board so…

Mr. Benson: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: …in terms of what the Zoning Board can review it's what's within the green lines that's all we can review. That's what the application is before us.

Mr. Hughes: That's the application in front of us.

Mr. Donovan: That's all we can take a look at.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. I'm just having this out there as a means of remedying the setback issues. I did want to explain the context of how they evolved. 

Mr. Maher: So basically, if I understand, by adding the property there you're looking to eliminate some of the variances that you need?  

Mr. Benson: Yeah. If I add this property here and I go in front of the Planning Board it would eliminate this variance here, it would eliminate the variance off the deck and this one, the side yard, back yards setbacks, it would eliminate a variance for this shed here which is at the 6.9 right now.

Chairperson Cardone: But wouldn't it make sense to do that first?

Mr. Benson: Yeah. I just want to make sure it's going to be something that it'll work for the different boards. I mean I'm…I don't want to go ahead and do it and find out that its not…I mean it is some expense. This survey alone cost me two thousand dollars after Zoutis 's survey inaccurate so this has cost me quite a bit of money. It's going to cost a quite a bit of money to get these lot lines changed and a new survey made so I really would like to get a sense of the possibility of this making the property compliant. 

Mr. Hughes: As to the rest of this stuff there with that shed there when you do that change that will eliminate that problem there where the shed…no on the front of the building by the red house.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. Now this is the trickiest part of how these lines were imposed. Obviously when Warmers did it originally this building was coming out so it cut right through the building. The Zoutis survey didn't show it doing that it showed it going along side of it. This is the correct survey it is cutting through the building so I did propose to take a line from here and go between these two buildings. Now this is a tight, this will need a variance because this is a tight property line between these two buildings. We own both properties but it does create a tight property line. And here obviously this is a tight property line so I would be eliminating three or four variances that I would need and I would still have at least two. So I would be eliminating three, I would still have two and also I think by adding a quarter acre it would reduce my percentage the other complaint which is too many buildings on the property and also too much square footage for accessory structures. 

Ms. Drake: Jerry, what if he was to combine all the lots together? But that puts two residences on one lot, right? That's a different problem?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, by doing that it would create something else. Whether there will or will be a need for a site plan I don't know. But again too, these are open-ended questions. Without seeing physical dimensions, metes and bounds of the lots I don't feel comfortable answering that it does or does not comply. I don't think it would be the correct thing to do at this point. 

Mr. Maher: So really in issue you'd have to go back and get the lot line changes completed, eliminate whatever variances aren't needed and then come back to the Board with…

Mr. Hughes: A corrected application.

Mr. Maher: A corrected application as far as the number of variances needed.

Mr. Canfield: My suggestion at this point would be for Mr. Benson asking this Board if this will fly or it doesn't comply, my suggestion would be to perhaps contract a design professional who is familiar with our requirements and speak with him on what may be the best way to lay this property out.

Mr. Hughes: It has to go through a subdivision even though it’s a lot line change; it will still have to be the subdivision?

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. It would be an application next to the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Do you understand that, Mr. Benson?

Mr. Benson: Not exactly, I thought a lot line change was something else.

Mr. Hughes: I would take Jerry's advice.

Mr. Canfield: No a lot line change still has to be brought before the Planning Board.

Mr. Benson: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: A lot consolidation can be done through the Assessor's Office however, that's not what you're looking at here.

Mr. Benson: All right.

Mr. Canfield: Unless you choose to consolidate everything but again I think your design professional could best advise you what would be the best for your interests.

Mr. Benson: Right.

Mr. Canfield: And for most importantly, in our eyes, compliance.

Mr. Benson: Right and I think with the lot that I purchased in the back at 1.2 acres I would actually like to keep that a viable lot. I don't want to take more than .2 acres off of it, frankly, which is all I'm taking so that the…so it, you know, should I need to develop it down the road or put a house there it's 40,000 square and it's within the Code. I don't want to bring it down below an acre.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, taking that into consideration your design professional can best advise you with what the zoning requirements are and he can better layout what your wants and needs are for the future.

Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Mr. Canfield: For your best utilization of the land.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. I would like to keep the rental property a separate lot because it's...

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Jerry could you just pass that microphone over? It's not picking up.

Mr. Canfield: Sure. Just one thing before I sit back down. Just a reminder for the applicant, I heard someone speak of advertisement on a website that could easily be construed as conducting some type of business on the property which I must remind you is not permitted in your zone.

Mr. Benson: Right. Right. Understood.

Mr. Canfield: If that's the applicant's wishes then they'll be back before this Board for that.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. That is not happening at this time. I would love to do that at some point. I'd love to have a small organic farm here but I'm not trying to address that now. I'm going to address the setbacks and variances.

Mr. Canfield: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone from the public that would like to speak to this application? Please give your name and address and pick the microphone up and raise it.

Mr. McKelvey: You can raise that up.

Ms. Gennarelli: You can raise it up or you can take it off, either one.

Mr. Pullman: Hi, my name is Eric Pullman and I live at 602 River Road a little bit further north on River Road actually in probably the oldest house in Balmville. And I'd just like to say in support of Matthew Benson that what he's done with his property is absolutely magnificent and Matt is a true craftsman and if everyone in Newburgh took the same care and patience to preserving property as opposed to taking properties like the Oblates on River Road and totally scalping it and removing all the forest area and in the two major developments on our road that have really taken a toll on the beauty of our road area. It's somewhat ludicrous that a, you know, someone should have to explain why there's value in preserving property. So I would just like to say that again if all of our neighbors were more thoughtful and preservation oriented like Matthew, Newburgh and Balmville would be a much prettier place to live in than it is today. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Eaton: It is important however to get the proper Permits.

Mr. Pullman: Yes and I understand that and a, you know, when I heard some discussions about farm animals and what's been kept on the property, I don't know if anybody is aware but the original deeds to our properties specifically list the different types of farm animals that we're allowed to keep, the only thing that we are not allowed to keep by the way is swine. And we're allowed up to four horses per acre and I own five acres on River Road so that would give me the right to have twenty horses. In terms of the neighbor that has complained, I will to tell you…tell you that this specific neighbor does have issues and we are somewhat at a loss to explain why a neighbor like this would complain about preservation of a piece of property when she bought a piece of property and totally scalped that property and laid asphalt all over it. There's some…there's some contradictory issues here so I think it's very important that when the Board takes things into consideration they look at things in the proper light.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Manley: Well sir, just to address your comment about the farm animals. The Town of Newburgh at one point was a very rural community and at that point back in the 1700's, 1800's people had lots of farm animals in their homes, you know, on their properties. The Town of Newburgh, the landscape has changed, it's no longer the rural community that everybody remembers it to be and unfortunately as zoning evolved the Town changed the Laws. The Laws of the Town of Newburgh supercede what is set on a deed. So the Town of Newburgh do not allow you, for example, to have twenty horses at your house. That's an incorrect statement and that's directly in the Zoning Code of the Town. 

Mr. Pullman: O.K. So, then…

Mr. Manley: I just wanted to make sure that we…for the record that that's corrected.

Mr. Pullman: O.K.

Mr. Manley: That's not an accurate statement.

Mr. Pullman: O.K. Thank you.  

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone else who would like to comment on this application?  

Mr. Lytle: Yes. How are you doing? Ken Lytle. As Matthew said I was the one who sold him this property to the south of his. I have a couple of issues with it. We still own a big chunk of property to the south of this, which we're still in the process of subdividing right now currently. A couple of things Matt stated and it shows on his map there, the property that he is hoping to acquire from Mr. Johnson on the north of his property. I believe that's currently where the proposed septic is for that lot.

Mr. Benson: No, it's not. I had the…the septic is…this looks bigger here but if you look in the context of the entire approved subdivision the septic is almost 40 feet away from this property line. This is basically…I'm basically buying this because we never had a place to park and I had asked you if I could buy it from you and you denied it to me so then when Douglas Johnson bought the land he was happy to comply as we're good neighbors and I'm now buying this basically so I can have some place to park my truck and my car as this driveway is too small. So I am going to spend about $6000 for this little parking area from Doug Johnson so. And it's just basically to make maneuvering and as Mr. Hughes said, you know, I'm crossing over all these roads, I mean we all are, it just makes maneuvering on the property easier so.

Mr. Lytle: Since you brought up the parking issue, I was actually available to get on to your website, I heard about that and I did check it out. And it is actually advertised as Stonegate is also available for leasing as an event, concert or wedding location.

Mr. Benson: Yes.

Mr. Lytle: So I'm trying to find out where you'll put all the parking for these…

Mr. Benson: Well, this…the website my brother told me called me on that right…I just launched a few months ago and he said, he said, boy your pie in the sky, in other words none of this, frankly none of this is happening. I've never rented out my property for anything. My neighbor has. For a large wedding and some events. And he's done big studio shoots there. I have yet to do that for my property. I would like to. And I'd like to get the Permits to do so but I still want to generate interest in that possibility so…yeah.

Mr. Lytle: Back to the property, on the right hand side there of your map on the south side of your property, there was I believe a 20 - 25 foot easement we gave you at the time for a landscape buffer which…

Mr. Benson: A 15 foot easement here, yeah.

Mr. Lytle: So I believe you're looking at this to increase your side yard to avoid some of your variances. In doing so, I believe that is going to make the existing lot, the lot we purchased actually non-conforming under the minimum width, something to think about.  I believe the minimum width…

Mr. Benson: What is the minimum width?

Mr. Lytle: I think it's 150 feet.

Mr. Hughes: 150.

Mr. Lytle: And I'm pretty sure when we laid those out we actually made them exactly 150 because again we wanted, at the time, to maximize the number of lots we could get out of the property. I'm pretty sure.

Mr. Benson: A…if that's the case then you know I…

Mr. Hughes: Are you on Town water? 

Mr. Benson: No I have…I have my own well and my rental property has its own well. We have our own septic.

Mr. Hughes: So because you have such a compressed thing there you can't go on to the Town water or Town sewer… Isn't there Town sewer there, Kenny?

Mr. Lytle: No. There is not. There is proposed to be Town water out front down the road by a subdivision and I don't think it's happened yet. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. There is water though?

Mr. Benson: And frankly…

Mr. Lytle: The water is proposed. The water is not existing out there currently. The existing lot that he purchased and the other lots along that way right now currently the proposal is for individual wells don't know if it's on the map. If water is ever provided out front those other houses that were involved into our subdivision would have to tie into it.

But no sewer at all as far as I know no sewer plans. Right?

Mr. Hughes: Where is the water? Down by the Balmville tree?

Mr. Lytle: By the Balmville tree and then actually north of this property also I think by the (inaudible) subdivision.

Mr. Canfield: Up by Bennett. 

Mr. Lytle: Yeah. It's still a ways away it hasn't run down in front of this yet. 

Mr. Hughes: So you're out of options with water and sewer.

Mr. Benson: Yeah and in fact let me just add to that when you brought with the hairdresser with the septic and the effluent from the chemicals, etc. a…the house that was built that Mr. Lytle sold the lot for just to the north of us, the house was built as close to the edge of the building window as possible. This house, if you visited my property, basically hovers over not only my tenants but over us like the Titanic we're down in the rowboats. They cleared all the trees and not only that but there is a 65 degree drop from a 2 foot foundation straight down onto our driveway and there is a high water table right here. There is an artesian spring. It floods this small house through the driveway every spring. This has a 40-foot shallow jet pump well. This house here is now using all kinds of chemicals and fertilizers on her lawn and all of that water is running, all of that chemical water is running into my tenants well. I see it and there is nothing I can do about it and I don't know how she got approval to build that house the way she did but it cannot be compliant. I've spoken to Karen Arent and she's furious about it, all those trees were cut down, that no retaining wall built so you know, we've had development go on around us in part because of these horrible lot lines that Mr. Warmer put in that allowed a house to built as close as it is. I mean it's hovering right over us and that's why we bought the lot behind us even though we couldn’t even afford for two hundred thousand dollars and its been a big strain on us because a developer could have come in and a house would have been built right behind the little red house almost on top of it. So we've tried to preserve the historic footprint of this property. It is…it is not an orthodox property I understand that. It has got all kinds of exceptional things about it that that make it, you know, make it not fit in to a…not fit into a normal…a normal design for a property but I'm trying to rectify frankly the sins of the past. I'm trying to rectify these bad property lines and trying to make this compliant. I would like nothing more than to have this property have appropriate property lines and setbacks and…

Mr. Manley: Taking that statement into account then that you're real intent is to preserve the property and to preserve the integrity of the way the property looks, why then would you be opposed to joining those parcels completely? In your statement before, you indicated that you only wanted to shave off a piece of it so that you would leave 40,000 sq. ft. so that you could another house on it in the future if you had to. So that kind of conflicts a little bit with what you were…

Mr. Benson: No actually. 

Mr. Manley: …stating now.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. We're in a pretty uncertain climate obviously. I'm taken a two hundred thousand piece of land and I'm putting a vegetable garden and an orchard on it. I'm not going to make…I'm not going to make anything. It's mostly an indulgence to that I love history. I could easily put a house there and make that property pay itself back, you know, and if I should come to that point, if something should happen to my life where I don't have income I may have to give myself the freedom to do that. It is a hedge against whatever future there might be and I think it's just a wise move for me not to make it less than 40,000 square. And frankly, I would…if I ever sold that to someone it would be so restricted as to what size house they could build, what materials, etc. that you know, it would take a very specific builder to want to even buy it. So…and when…when the houses if you notice if you drive up River Road, the two houses that are still sitting empty two years later after being built, these 4000 sq. ft. vinyl boxes that the builder said, oh, we're going to make them fit into the neighborhood. And I stood up in front of the Planning Board and spoke at length and gave them all kinds of paperwork about preserving the historic center of Balmville and yet these houses were approved. They took down all the trees so that broke all kind of Code. They also built houses that were exactly the same, which they weren't allowed; they hired one architect and build two cookie cutter houses that are still sitting there unsold. Because people drive by them and you know what they say, they say what a shame. When you used to drive up River Road from the Balmville tree past the Desmond House and Morningside and Stonegate it was beautiful. It's a beautiful long historic drive and now you drive up and there are these enormous vinyl boxes and that's…everyone's taste is different. That's fine but they are completely out of context and they…and again they violated a lot of the stipulations of their approval. They cut down way too many trees. They, you know, like I said they built two of the same houses so I do care a lot about the footprint and the context and the visual, the view shed of the property enormously. And if I ever were to build anything perhaps for my aging mother or something I might build a very small, quaint Gothic revival house that fits in exactly with all these carpenter Gothic buildings. I certainly would never allow anything to be built that's out of context.

Mr. Hughes: Grace, we lost Mr. Lytle in the shuffle here.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Lytle: Regarding the hens, I know you said you thought you had about a half a dozen but the pictures on your website show you have about ten. Are any hens of six or more even allowed in that zone, to have there?

Mr. Donovan: Let me just say this is a fascinating conversation but it really have anything to do with the application in front of us which is and we really can't pay any attention to the red lines and we only have to pay attention to the green lines so we have, you know, property is excess of the maximum building coverage, the accessory structure are in excess. We have rear yard setback violations, side yard setback violations, buildings closer to the street than they are to be and closer to the home than…and that's the application in front of the Board and so we need to rule on that, on its merits, and our questions should be directed to that. Otherwise, not to be impatient but the older I get the more impatient I get…

Mr. Benson: That's fine.

Mr. Donovan: …this is the application before the Board so all this other stuff is kind of nice to talk about but…

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Lytle: I do have more questions specifically regarding that. Regarding the pool, I think it was back in '99 or 2000 when you went for a pool variance…

Mr. Benson: '99.

Mr. Lytle: …yeah, you went for a pool variance for a 4-foot setback?

Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Mr. Lytle: And basically on the map it appears it shifted 8-feet, 4-feet was supposed to be inside the line and now it's 3 point some feet outside the line?

Mr. Benson: Yeah. Yeah.

Mr. Lytle: Any reason that should they give you a variance when you moved it 8-feet?

Mr. Benson: Mr. Lytle, if you paid attention I had a survey that was incorrect. Everything was shifted this way and we built…

Mr. Hughes: Address the Board, please.

Mr. Benson: …and we built the pool according to the original certified survey that we got when we bought the property which was in error by George Zoutis and substantially in error enough that when we put the pool in all we needed was a 4-foot variance to put that pool in. Now it turns out we need much more. So all of this was done from an erroneous survey.

Chairperson Cardone: The survey that you submitted to the Board at that time was the one that…


Mr. Benson: That's the one that we used to buy the house.

Chairperson Cardone: …was the incorrect one.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. To buy this house and to buy the rental house from my wife's father. So. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any other questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Hughes: Counsel? Before we go and close the Public Hearing, there is just too much going on here that's not good. Is there some way we can coax the Building Department and the Planning Board to take another look at this thing?

Mr. Donovan: Well I don't think that the Planning Board has taken any look at this.

Chairperson Cardone: It didn't come from the Planning Board.

Mr. Donovan: I mean, we could, you know I suppose this is up to the Board hold our…hold the Public Hearing open if we wanted or hold our Decision and allow the applicant to go to the Planning Board because we don't know and obviously what we have is reduced and not to scale what impact these proposed changes would have.

Mr. Hughes: Well there's one other option to that I don't think was discussed or I might have missed something but the front to back lot there where the rental house, that's the red house where the tenant live, couldn't that be combined and eliminate some more stuff too? You know I can understand his concern about the other lot there for the hedging of the house in the future but what about the front to the back because you have three parcels now that have to go on that road anyway.

Chairperson Cardone: But then you have two residences on one lot…

Mr. Hughes: On one lot.

Chairperson Cardone: …in an R-1 district.

Mr. Hughes: Which is much less offensive than all the other stuff they're asking for.  

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, you know it gets and we try to do certain things at certain times but the reality is its not our job to tell the applicant what to do. We have an application in front of us, you know, and I don't really know…it would certainly be I think helpful if these lines were to solve the problem if there was an application before the Planning Board but there is not and there may not ever be one. So we have an application before us, we have a series of violations and I don't know…Jerry, do you know where Code Compliance stands in terms of whether or not there is any action…if any action was taken it would be stayed by this appeal to this Board…if there has been any enforcement action undertaken or not? If you know the answer to that?

Mr. Canfield: I think in the applicant's best interest the Planning Board graciously just denied the Building Permit Applications and referred them to this Board.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: But this has been an ongoing problem. We would like to see a resolution to it. We would also like to have the applicant cooperate. But of course, the ultimate is to have voluntary compliance. However, we cannot leave it open ended. So in some point in time if the applicant choose a correct and prominent choice of action then yes to answer your question Dave, there will be an enforcement action proceeding. 

Ms. Drake: Can we actually ask the applicant to hire a consultant to evaluate all your options and propose a plan to the Planning Board for a subdivision that would best address most of these violations? Is that something we're allowed to ask them to do and keep the Public Hearing open until some of that's been addressed or come back with real lot lines? 

Mr. Donovan: I mean, yeah, we could but understand that that will probably take a period of …

Mr. Manley: Months.

Mr. Donovan: …months.

Mr. Hughes: And it would be a whole new application anyway.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: I move we close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Benson: Could I just ask quickly, do I in order to do these lot line changes, do I need to apply for a new subdivision?

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Ms. Drake: With the Planning Board.

Mr. Benson: O.K. I thought it was something you went to the Planning Board and asked for a lot line…I didn't know it was a subdivision application.

Mr. Hughes: That rulings been changed.

Mr. Benson: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: You have to get a subdivision. 

Mr. Benson: O.K. But I'm happy to work with a professional engineer or surveyor to figure out how this would mitigate the setback issues. And this was granted, this I'm just drawing on land that I'm either in contract to buy or I own already to offer this as a solution. I did the math myself and it adds more than a quarter acre, which would, from my math, would satisfy the setback issues except for right here where I would need a variance. But I’m happy to have that be done by a professional obviously because the Building Department has to reevaluate the distance from the property line to the setbacks and that's that's their job not mine so.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Benson: But just to reiterate on what Mr. Canfield said, I am really trying hard to cooperate, every time the Code Compliance has sent me a note I've sent letters back to Mr. Mattina explaining our situation and I've…I've submitted things on time and I've tried to be very forthwith in getting this resolved. It's produced a lot of anxiety for my wife and me and frankly we would love to resolve it, you know, in the best possible manner and in…in a timely fashion because it’s a…it's been hanging over our head since we moved there and frankly it's been hanging over my wife's head since she was born there. You know it's been a long time that these issues have been present and it has, I'm sorry, it has come upon me to have to resolve them as opposed to five or six other families who have lived here and who have all had none compliant structures.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. We have a motion. Do we have a second to that?       

Ms. Drake: I’ll second to that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 8:52 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009       (Resumption for decision: 9:27 PM)

MATTHEW AND HEIDI BENSON 

4 STONEGATE DRIVE, NBGH







(43-5-22) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum lot building coverage, the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures, building an accessory structure close to the fronting street than the dwelling, accessory structure no closer than 5 feet from the property line, creating a new non-conformity with the 14 ft. x 14 ft. addition to the prior built 31 ft. x 14 ft. accessory structure, accessory structures must be 10 feet from the main building to keep the prior built 8 ft. x 9 ft. pool shed and a rear yard setback, one side yard setback and combined side yards setbacks to keep the prior built two-tier deck.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Matthew and Heidi Benson, 4 Stonegate Drive seeking area variances for the maximum lot building coverage, the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures, building an accessory structure close to the fronting street than the dwelling, accessory structure no closer than 5 feet from the property line, creating a new non-conformity with the 14 ft. x 14 ft. addition to the prior built 31 ft. x 14 ft. accessory structure, accessory structures must be 10 feet from the main building to keep the prior built 8 ft. x 9 ft. pool shed and a rear yard setback, one side yard setback and combined side yards setbacks to keep the prior built two-tier deck. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Drake: I feel until we actually get a plan that shows the actual lot lines addressed that we shouldn't approve this application. I make motion to deny.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Mr. Manley: The application is excessive. The request is excessive and I believe that if the applicant were to make some changes they could eliminate quite a few of these issues.

Ms. Gennarelli: Who was the second on that, I'm sorry? Ruth? O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. The motion for disapproval is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:28 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 8:53 PM) 



MATTHEW AND HEIDI BENSON 

4 STONEGATE DRIVE, NBGH







(43-5-22) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to allow a pool to be closer than 10 feet from a lot line to keep a prior built in-ground pool. 

Chairperson Cardone: And our next application is Matthew and Heidi Benson.

Ms. Gennarelli: On the in-ground pool application, the Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, February 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday February 18th. The applicant sent out seven registered letters, three were returned and three were unclaimed. All the mailings and publications were in order.  

Mr. Benson: So the pool was contracted to be put in in 1999 and a Permit (application) was taken out and a variance was sought and granted by this Board to come within 4-feet, the fence could come within 4-feet of the property line and that a…that all changed of course, when we finally got an accurate survey which threw our pool almost 4-feet over the property line and our fence almost 15-feet over the property line. It is now property that we own which is a good thing because this was the proposed shape of the road that was going to be called Warmers' Drive. It was going to go through here that's why you have this curved shape along here and this road was going to connect the forty or so houses that were going to be built after these buildings were taken down so. It's always been a…it's always been a sort of troublesome slice out of our property but when we did have the pool built we were using a certified survey that was entered in into the liber and the banks by Mr. Zoutis who subsequently admitted that he made a mistake. So we were following an existing survey and had the pool put in so. 

Mr. Maher: So, counsel, I would imagine that if in fact that lot like change occurs this becomes a moot point with that variance also?

Mr. Donovan: That's correct. Yes. Well assuming that if the lot line change accommodates what it needs under the Code. Now, you know, we don't really have a certified survey of what's being proposed but presumably if that's the goal that's what will happen.  

Mr. Benson: Could I just ask that, would you suggest that I go ahead and get a survey, get a consultant and get a new survey done that after consulting with this engineer or whomever, get that done before a meeting with the Planning Board, or a meeting with your Board again? How would you like me to proceed?

Mr. Donovan: Well again, it's not for us, you know, you obviously made your application and this Board reviews it. However, if you were to go to someone a surveyor, an engineer and said these are my problems, I need them fixed then perhaps they could prepare a map.

Mr. Benson: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Because being in contract with your neighbor he's going to have to…you are going to have a subdivision. 

Mr. Benson: Yes. 

Mr. Donovan: He's going to have to go to the Planning Board. I don't know whether there's been an application or not but you're not going to close by March 31st to buy that land without an application and a Public Hearing. 

Mr. Benson: Right.

Mr. Donovan: In front of the Planning Board.

Mr. Benson: Right. Right.

Mr. Donovan: So, you have a whole host of problems that have been identified. I would suggest, my own two cents, is that you hire some and say these are my problems and how can I fix them.

Mr. Benson: Right and frankly I would love with someone from Code Compliance, Mr. Canfield or Mr. Mattina, and sit down with them and with my engineer and they can say, oh you know what that's still not enough for that side yard setback you need to take more land, you need to do this otherwise I'm just dancing in the dark. I mean even the engineer I'm sure could benefit from meeting with the Town. Mr. Canfield knows the Codes very well obviously as does Mr. Mattina and that way we could really carve out something that would resolve the set back issues. 

Mr. Donovan: Right. You just need to be a little sensitive to the fact that just like I give advice to the Board and not you. Code Compliance gives advice to the Town and enforces the Town Zoning and the Uniform Fire Prevention and Building Code and so not to be a lawyer but it is part of my job is that they really can't give you advice. So if you hire someone that is familiar with the Code because it's all in the Code. I mean, you know, your problems may seem like a lot but they're not insurmountable. 

Mr. Benson: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: So, you now, somebody could fix them.

Mr. Benson: O.K., O.K.

Mr. Donovan: I would think.

Mr. Benson: So it's not the Code Compliance's job meet with anyone and work it out.

Mr. Donovan: No. I mean to a degree they could be helpful but it is not really their job.

Mr. Benson: O.K. Only because this obviously is a tricky piece of land you know and I want to get it right. I don't want to come up before the Board and have it be wrong. So.

Ms. Drake: But you also need to get the final survey that you would present back to us for any variances. You would need to have purchased that other piece of property…

Mr. Benson: Right.

Ms. Drake: …first.

Mr. Benson: Right, right.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Questions or comments from the public?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 8:59 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009       (Resumption for decision: 9:28 PM)

MATTHEW AND HEIDI BENSON 

4 STONEGATE DRIVE, NBGH







(43-5-22) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to allow a pool to be closer than 10 feet from a lot line to keep a prior built in-ground pool. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Matthew and Heidi Benson seeking an area variance to allow a pool to be closer than 10 feet from a lot line to keep a prior built in-ground pool. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: Same thing that was here.

Ms. Drake: Same discussion. Yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: I make a motion we disapprove.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:29 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 9:00 PM) 



NATALIE COPPOLA & 


20 PACER DRIVE, NEWBURGH

DR. MARY LOU VENEZIALI  

(57-3-9) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the allowed square footage of accessory structures to build a 32' x 24' x 13' detached garage. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Natalie Coppola and Dr. Mary Lou Veneziali.

Dr. Veneziali: My name is Dr. Mary Lou Veneziali and I'm here for a held over variance from the last meeting for a detached garage and there was a few things we had to talk to the Building Inspector about and we have that information for you tonight.

Mr. Mickelson: My Name is Bob Mickelson and I helped Mary Lou with the project. I'm from Grey's Woodworks…

Mr. Hughes: You've got to get closer to the microphone. 

Mr. Mickelson: I'm from Grey's Woodworks we're doing the garage for Mary Lou that is proposed. And we got the information from Joe (Mattina) on the pool. We had a question on the pool last time. There was a pool that Mary Lou had gotten a Permit for and everything was taken care of. She has a C.O. for the pool. The pool wasn't in the calculations of the square footage so we didn't know. Joe had gave me the square footage, the square footage calculations. Do you have those? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we have them.

Mr. Mickelson: Oh yeah, O.K. So he calculated it out so now the difference in the variance we were looking for 600 sq. ft. now it's going to be 900 sq. ft. If there is an issue with the shed that 10 x 14 shed, 140 sq. ft. and they never had a Permit for that. That was on the property when she bought the house. We're proposing if we need to remove the shed we could do that in lieu of the (inaudible) separate for the pool, the square footage possibly and that's what we're looking for. 

Chairperson Cardone: I think one of the issues was there was a question whether or not the surface or the building coverage needed a variance and this shows us that it does not.

Mr. Mickelson: Does not, correct. It was under the 30% surface coverage and we're under the 15% of the building coverage for the lot, so it shouldn't be an issue on this. 

Chairperson Cardone: And we also had the suggestion that shed be removed. 

Mr. Mickelson: Yes that what Ron was thinking. The shed is quite old and she has a lot of stuff in it but if we have to take it down we could take it down and just eliminate that square footage. Take it out of the calculation so that would probably help.

Mr. Hughes: So when you came before us the first time we that you were allowed 308.

Mr. Mickelson: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And now you're saying its what?

Mr. Mickelson: Well now with the pool it's at 900.

Chairperson Cardone: But if you take off the shed…

Mr. Mickelson: Right.

Mr. Hughes: That brings you down to…

Chairperson Cardone: 820.

Mr. Hughes: 760.

Mr. Mickelson: 760, yes sir.

Mr. Hughes: But its 200% that what you're looking for over. I thought we had discussions that we were looking for you to reduce the size of the garage.

Mr. Mickelson: It's possible but with losing the size of the 140 sq. ft. of the shed it's such a small house. There's only a one-car garage under the house and the house is only 960 sq. ft. It's really tight to have any…there's really no storage at all in the house. There's a small one-car garage underneath and we'd like keep the garage the size we have it if we can. I mean there's just a…there's really no a…we're going to make the house exactly and think we'd really add a lot to the property and I think it would look very nice there so I don't see where it would hurt anything to keep it that size just because you are going to eliminate the shed and there's not much room left there in the house, you know. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. I'm confused here. I'll quote what was said at the last meeting. 'The garage'…you are Mickelson?  

Mr. Mickelson: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: 'The garage is 768; the building is 140, that makes 908, less the 305'. 

Mr. Mickelson: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: Where is the 305?

Mr. Mickelson: The 305? 

Mr. Hughes: You said…

Mr. Mickelson: That's the allowable square footage.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Mickelson: Correct?

Mr. Hughes: That comes to 603. Now you're telling me it's back up to 900.

Mr. Mickelson: Yes, because of the pool. The pool is…he is including that into the square footage for an accessory structure. 

Mr. Hughes: But that doesn't subtract from the total of the garage that adds to it.

Mr. Mickelson: Exactly. 

Mr. Hughes: All right. Then I'll go further on I thought we had made this pretty explicit that it was way over and that it was substantial and that you had to do something to reduce the garage because we knew the pool wasn't calculated. It says here 190% over without the pool.

Mr. Mickelson: Right. So that's why we're saying we'll take the shed out.

Mr. Hughes: That's substantial and part of your requirement; your possibility is to show that it is not substantial and I don't see how you can show that. 

Mr. Mickelson: Well we could make the garage smaller if we need to.

Mr. Hughes: Well I thought that's what we had discussed the last time. It's written right here in the minutes if you'd like to see what you discussed the last time. 

Mr. Mickelson: Yeah. No, I understand that. How much smaller would you like to make it?

Mr. Hughes: I thought you were coming here tonight with a proposal of a reduction.

Mr. Mickelson: Well we proposed to reduce the shed, take the 140 off of it.

Mr. Hughes: We had discussed about the reduction of the garage.

Mr. Mickelson: Right.

Ms. Drake: Grace, I'm going to abstain from this one because I wasn't here last month.

Mr. Hughes: I thought that it was very clear to everyone that we were looking for a reduction, you're 200%, 197 over without the pool. 

Mr. Mickelson: Right.

Mr. Hughes: With the pool it probably brings you to about 240% over? That's substantial.

Mr. Mickelson: So if we took 200 sq. ft. off the garage?

Mr. Hughes: Well I mean this isn't a roll of the dice at this point. I'd have to see something with a floor plan not just hash it out over here and there's other Members of the Board here it's not my decision but that's a very substantial request. That neighborhood is all small lots and you know you only have what, 145 x 100 for the lot to begin with? 

Mr. Mickelson: It's 16,000 sq. ft.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Dr. Veneziali: There are other…my neighbors; some of them have garages like that.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah but not as large as that overage. 

Dr. Veneziali: Well, attached 2-car garages on them.

Mr. Hughes: Two car garages.

Dr. Veneziali: That I've seen, you know, within my house.

Mr. McKelvey: With a pool? With a pool also?  

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I don't know. I'd have to see an address number and look at it.

Mr. Maher: Did you say attached?

Dr. Veneziali: Detached. And I think last time we were in question whether the pool was considered in there so we really hadn't talked about what size we would be reducing it to.

Mr. Mickelson: Right.

Dr. Veneziali: If that's what's necessary then, you know, we're willing to be compliant.

Mr. Mickelson: Yeah, if we could say that 200 square we can't go much…she really doesn't want to go much smaller than a two-car garage just because there's no room. So if we go to 24 x 24 that would be 200 sq. ft. off of that.

Mr. Hughes: And, that brings you down to 560, which is double what you're allowed to have.

Mr. Mickelson: Right.

Mr. Hughes: So it's still heavy.

Dr. Veneziali: I don't know if this has any bearing on it also. The pool was put in in 1999 so it's really not going to last that much longer and I don’t intend to replace it with the same size pool or replace it. I can't say that I am never going to want a pool in the future but the likelihood is…we're done with the pool.  

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah but what you're doing now…the pool is there; we've got to count that pool. 

Mr. Mickelson: Yeah. You've definitely have got to count it in the calculations.

Dr. Veneziali: O.K.

Mr. Mickelson: So can talk about just going to take the two hundred more square feet off? Off the garage, the size of the garage, can we discuss that or…?

Mr. Hughes: That brings you down to 560.

Mr. Mickelson: Yes. So it's not quite…

Mr. Hughes: And you're allowed to have 308?

Mr. Mickelson: 305.

Mr. Hughes: 305? That still puts you 255 over.

Mr. Mickelson: Well we feel it's going to match the house very nicely. All the siding is going to match and you know, I think it's going to be a nice addition to the house…the property.

Dr. Veneziali: And it is hard to maneuver into our garage now.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, we've been out to the site and looked at it.

Dr. Veneziali: (Inaudible) …a three point turn every time you've got to park the car (inaudible) the driveway as access during…

Mr. Mickelson: We don't have to add any driveway or anything so it's not going to add to the surface coverage at all. 

Mr. Manley: Is there any way, just out of curiosity, that the house might be able to be reconfigured to add the garage onto the house by some chance? Is there anyway…?

Mr. Mickelson: It would just…it would add a lot of cost. Yeah. Then you wouldn't be able to use the garage underneath because that…

Mr. Manley: There would be no way to interconnect a garage and the other garage?

Mr. Mickelson: Well you probably could put a doorway through it but it wouldn't be usable to get larger things in there, you know, because you have to come down and go underneath like to get through there...to attach it there you know. You couldn't put it on the end because it would be too close to the line but…I'm sure it would be too close to the line.

Dr. Veneziali: Right now we're within all the setbacks…(Inaudible)

Mr. Manley: Approximately how many feet are on the side yard there? I don't have the map in front of me.

(Inaudible) Mr. Mickelson approached (Inaudible)

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry, Meadow Hill R-2 or R-1?

Chairperson Cardone: R-2.

Mr. Hughes: R-2.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K. I didn't know whether they were in that…

Ms. Eaton: What size is the garage? 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: Let's do this. Let's make sure everyone uses the microphone because Betty is going to blow a gasket pretty soon.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you Dave. If they don't it won't get into the record.

Mr. Mickelson: To answer your question the proposed was 24 x 32 and then we just downsized it to 24 x 24 if you add some more square footage off of the total.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Maher: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



Brenda Drake: Abstain.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 9:07 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 26, 2009      (Resumption for decision: 9:29 PM)

NATALIE COPPOLA & 


20 PACER DRIVE, NEWBURGH

DR. MARY LOU VENEZIALI  

(57-3-9) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the allowed square footage of accessory structures to build a 32' x 24' x 13' detached garage. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Natalie Coppola and Dr. Mary Lou Veneziali seeking an area variance for the allowed square footage of accessory structures to build a detached garage. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Eaton: The applicant has said that they will take the shed down and are willing to make the garage 24 x 24 which reduces the amount of coverage.

Mr. Manley: The applicant has also indicated that the pool is getting up there in age. Obviously we have to count the calculation but obviously it's an above ground pool it's not a permanent structure. I would be willing to make a motion that approve with the condition that they remove the shed and reduce the size of the structure to the 24 x 24 x 13.

Ms. Eaton: I second.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes



Brenda Drake: Abstain.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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DANNY HAYDEN



244 MOUNTAIN VIEW AVENUE, NBGH







(5-1-17) RR ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum allowable height to build a 

24' x 30' x 23' detached garage. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Danny Hayden. Is Danny Hayden here? Is there anyone here to speak to that application? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Gennarelli: We had written him a letter telling him that we would…

Chairperson Cardone: If you could you read that into the record? 

Mr. Hughes: He was supposed to respond by tonight.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Dear Danny Hayden, we had not…

Mr. Manley: Could you use the microphone please? (Laughter - Moving the mic closer)

Mr. Hughes: Would you please speak into the microphone? We have been dying for years…?

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you very much. You've been waiting for that I know. We had not heard from you or a representative for you that you would not be attending the January 22, 2009 ZBA meeting. As you know, your case for the area variance to build a 24 x 30 x 23 detached garage had been held over from November 25th to December 23rd, 2008 and then held over to January 22nd, 2009's Zoning Board's Appeals agenda for you to submit further information, so please contact this office. Your case is on the agenda for Thursday, February 26th, 2009 and if you do not submit the information and appear at the meeting the Board will consider your application withdrawn. Sincerely, Betty Gennarelli, Zoning Board of Appeals Secretary

Chairperson Cardone: And have you had a response?

Ms. Gennarelli: I have not heard from him.

Chairperson Cardone: We consider it withdrawn at this point. 

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, do we need to formalize this in any way? 

Mr. Donovan: No. We did by virtue of the letter. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. And I would ask you to wait out in the hallway and we will call you back in shortly. 
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STEVEN D. CRISCI, SR.


12 DOGWOOD HILLS ROAD, NBGH







(78-3-25.2) R-1 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: Under Other Board Business, I have a letter from Steven Crisci Sr. Please allow an extension to my variance for section, lot, block 78-3-25.2, R-1 zoning otherwise known as 12 Dogwood Hills Road, Newburgh for a variance allowing for a pool install and some other work described in the Permit. At this time, it is impossible for me to have the pool installed due to the hard economic times that we are all currently experiencing. Please allow an extension so that I can complete the pool in the spring or summer season. Thank you for your consideration. Steven Crisci, Sr. Do I have a motion to approve this extension?

Mr. McKelvey: When was the six months up?

Mr. Hughes: It's coming up.

Chairperson Cardone: It's not up yet. 

Mr. McKelvey: It's not up, O.K.

Mr. Maher: It's up in March.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K. I'll make a motion we grant the six-month extension.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes
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GOMEZ MILL HOUSE 


11 MILL HOUSE ROAD







(8-1-28, 29.21) AR & AR/O ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: And also Other Board Business I have a communication which all Members of the Board in their hands at this time from Michael Donnelly and I don't know if I need to read the whole thing but I'll read a part to it. As you are probably aware the Gomez Mill House is an important historical building located within the Town. In 1985 the Gomez Mill House Foundation obtained a Use Variance from you in order to operate an historical museum upon the Mill House property that is located within the A/R Zoning District. I attach a copy of that Use Variance Decision. The variance that you granted allowed the applicant to restore the Mill House and to thereafter operate a museum and educational research activities. Significantly during your review, you noted that the access from Mill House Road and 9W is difficult and potentially dangerous giving the condition of that roadway and therefore you included a condition that stated that until that was upgraded that traffic would be limited to nothing larger than a passenger car. I'm just…I'm not going to read every word here. I'm just giving you a synopsis of it. In the years since that was granted the condition of the Mill House Road has declined further and I think as we all know the bridge is out and there is no access from the Newburgh side. The Mill House Foundation has obtained land and they're intending to put in a parking lot and have access from the Marlboro side of the property. And the reason that Mr. Donnelly has written to us, he's writing on behalf of the Planning Board to determine with certainty whether our Board believes that the current site plan application for an improved parking lot is within the authority previously granted use variance or whether any modifications were needed. 

Mr. Hughes: Jennifer, how are you?

Ms. Van Tuyl: I don't want to unduly interject. If the Board wants any brief information we're happy to just quickly…

Mr. Hughes: Would you just identify yourself for the record?

Ms. Van Tuyl: My name is Jennifer Van Tuyl from the firm of Cuddy and Feder. And this is Ruth Abrahams who is the Executive Director of the Gomez House and behind her is Peter Karis who is a landscape architect with the firm of Hudson and Pacific Designs of Saugerties whose been doing the design work for the museum. I think the relevant factors for the Board to be aware of are that nothing of the operation of the museum has changed one width since the variance was granted in 1985 and the one thing that the museum is proposing to modify is the practice relating to parking relating to school buses. There was that condition that you imposed and I think that you said along Mill House Road and I think everyone was thinking at the time of the part of Mill House Road that came in from Route 9W. We have some maps here and Peter why don't you put that…and just pass them out…the…I think the area of Mill House Road that was of concern was coming in from 9W and indeed that's where the bridge is out. And what the museum has been doing since 1985 is that when any bus delivers passengers to visit the Gomez House, the bus pulls off on Route 9W, there's ample property there and the buses discharge their passengers. These buses come only by appointment. They're scheduled. Our average visitor-ship everyday is twenty people per day over the two hundred and ten day season. And to date school buses have to stop in the same place discharging students and there's never been an untoward incident because the students are discharged on the landward side. But what the museum is proposing to do now by virtue of the grant and Peter, of course, can give us more details about this is to provide ADA access, some interpretive trails and improvements just to make getting to the museum and walking down to the house, this is an ADA ramp, more accessible and safer for everyone. So what we would like to do is allow school buses only to come in along this route and you will see that there is a space for two school buses to park here. We're not asking…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you just use the microphone, please. It's not being recorded. Thank you.

Ms. Van Tuyl: I'm sorry. 

Ms. Gennarelli: That's O.K. You could bring the whole stand over if you would like.

Ms. Van Tuyl: Our only request is to modify what school buses do for obvious reasons. I think many of you may be aware that there's a third grade educational program through the public school and students have been coming to the Gomez House for many years and what we would like to do in the interest of safety is to just have those school buses come in and access the property from this side. Commercial buses would continue the existing practice of parking on Route 9W. Now when we read the condition that you imposed as part of your Use Variance I think that it could easily be interpreted to state that you were concerned about this part of Mill House Road and certainly were not attempting to prohibit school buses from traveling the public roads to get to the site over the route that I have highlighted in yellow on the paper that we've handed out to you. And I guess that's what we would ask the Board to consider. I will tell you, and we're happy to discuss this with you if you like, Mike Donnelly has suggested that at the Planning Board we agree to a narrative, a statement of use that the Planning Board would have on file confirming that there has been no change in the use as a museum and just so that would be available for everyone as a benchmark. We have not resisted that at all. We've provided the Planning Board with that statement of use. I did bring copies today and I certainly have no problem giving them to you but I think perhaps your referral from the Planning Board makes it clear that there's no question of us becoming other than a museum. I think the sole question is this proposal to allow the school children to come to the site over this other route because certainly everyone else, passenger cars have had the option to arrive at the museum that way via the public roads for all these many years since 1985 so Peter has done a beautiful job with the site plan and I'm sure he's very anxious to describe to you all the beautiful materials and the pervious pavement, etc. But I know the hour is late so we'll leave it to you whether you want to hear an additional presentation and we'll certainly be happy to answer your questions. 

Mr. Donovan: I think just to kind of narrow the issue before the Board, it's whether or not that this proposal before the Planning Board in any way violates what was condition number two in the Use Variance issued by this Board back in 1985. And if it doesn't, you can authorize me to communicate with the Planning Board that in our view it does not and they can proceed accordingly and they proceed accordingly. If you feel differently then you feel differently.

Chairperson Cardone: In my view it does not violate it because it states that that particular road which is in the Town of Newburgh, you know, until that part of the road has been approved that none of these other vehicles would be accessing the Mill House. That's the way I interpret it anyway.

Mr. Hughes: I'm comfortable with it as well.

Chairperson Cardone: And we're not dealing with that part of the road.

Mr. Manley: I would tend to concur with the Chair.

Mr. Hughes: And I would love to hear your melodious voice but the happy hour is way over due right now. 

Mr. Donovan: So my suggestion then is a resolution to authorize me to, that's the easiest way, to communicate…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …to the Planning Board that the proposal is consistent with the conditions imposed by the Use Variance granted.

Chairperson Cardone: Well said.

Mr. Hughes: And just so you guys know this is consistent with the plan for the Greenway Trail in the Town of Newburgh and southern Ulster alliance.

Ms. Van Tuyl: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Because I've been working that directly with the Governor's office, parks and trails so…

Ms. Van Tuyl: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …I know quite a bit about this site here.

Inaudible

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion to agreeing with what the attorney said.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor?

Aye all.

Chairperson Cardone: One more item though. All opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.  
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Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has the minutes to last months meeting? Do we have a motion for approval of the minutes? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Ms. Van Tuyl: I just want to thank the Board very much for allowing this item to be added to your agenda. Ruth hasn't stated that she has a grant of half a million dollars available in Albany but she can't get access to the money until the SEQRA process is completed and is anxious to get the money before some other group tries to take it away from her so we appreciate your allowing us to come before you. 

Ms. Abrahams: Thank you.  

Chairperson Cardone: You're welcome. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to adjourn?

Mr. Manley: I'll make a motion to adjourn.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned until our meeting in March.
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